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  ASSEMBLYWOMAN ELIANA PINTOR MARIN (Chair):  

Good morning, everyone. 

 We’re going to get started.  I know that the Treasurer has to go 

over to the Senate side for 1 p.m., so we want to make sure that we have 

enough time with her and that she’s also prepared to move on to the Senate. 

 Scott, if we could do roll call? 

 MR. BRODSKY (Committee Aide):  Good morning; roll call. 

 Assemblyman Wirths. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  Present. 

 MR. BRODSKY:   Assemblywoman Muñoz. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MUÑOZ:  Here. 

 MR. BRODSKY:  Assemblywoman DiMaso. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DiMASO:  Here. 

 MR. BRODSKY:  Assemblyman Clifton. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CLIFTON:  Here. 

 MR. BRODSKY:  Assemblyman Wimberly. (no response) 

 Assemblyman Spearman. (no response) 

 Assemblywoman Reynolds-Jackson. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN REYNOLDS-JACKSON:  Present. 

 MR. BRODSKY:  Assemblywoman Murphy. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MURPHY:  Here. 

 MR. BRODSKY:  Assemblyman McKeon. (no response) 

 Assemblyman Johnson. (no response) 

 Assemblyman Benson. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  Present. 

 MR. BRODSKY:  Vice Chairman Burzichelli. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN J. BURZICHELLI (Vice Chair):  

Here. 

 MR. BRODSKY:  Madam Chair. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Present. 

 Good morning, everyone.  

 Like I said, we’re going to have the Treasurer start off first.  For 

all the other participants who are on -- we’ll probably take about an hour, or 

a little over an hour.  So if you would like to stay on and listen to the hearing, 

please feel free to.  If you would like to come back in about an hour or so, 

feel free to do so as well. 

 Treasurer, it’s nice to see you again. 

E L I Z A B E T H   M A H E R   M U O I O,   Esq.:  Good to see you 

again, Chairwoman. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  And Treasurer, we 

want to be cognizant of your time, so I did have a conversation with some of 

our colleagues.  I want to make sure that we get to you in time so that you 

are prepared for the Senate; and that you have your time to grab yourself a 

little time, and your staff as well. 

 So Treasurer, if you would like to start today. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  I appreciate that, Chairwoman; 

thank you. 

   And good morning to you, and to Vice Chair Burzichelli, and 

Budget Officer Wirths, and the rest of the members of the Committee. 

 And it’s good to see you all again so soon.   

 I am joined here today by Assistant Treasurer Dini Ajmani; and 

our Director of the Office of Public Finance, Michael Kanef. 
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 Since we provided our revenue and budget numbers in depth to 

you last Thursday, I am going to focus my brief opening remarks on the 

proposed Bond Act, A-4175. 

 As the global pandemic has unfolded, one thing it has made clear 

is that the need for essential government services increases exponentially in 

times of crisis.  Demand for and reliance on public health professionals, law 

enforcement, first responders, financial assistance, and Medicaid, just to 

name a few, have all increased significantly. 

 Meanwhile, as you know, our fiscal resources have followed the 

opposite trajectory.  We are expecting significant budgetary challenges 

because of steep declines in nearly all of our major revenue sources due to 

COVID-19 -- the COVID-19-related shutdowns and stay-at-home orders. 

 According to the revenue projections we recently shared with 

you, the State is facing a $2.7 billion shortfall through June 30; and we’re 

looking at an additional $7 billion shortfall through the end of Fiscal Year 

2021 next June, for a combined shortfall of roughly $10 billion. 

 As we all saw during the hearing before this Committee on 

Thursday, OLS is largely in agreement with our projections as well.  They 

were also in equal agreement on the volatility of the forecasting situation. 

 While the impact on New Jersey’s budget and finances is both 

rapidly changing and unpredictable, what is clear is that revenues and cash 

flow will be significantly affected to such an extent that bonding authority 

will be necessary to help address New Jersey’s unprecedented budgetary 

challenges in the coming months.  But, as we discussed with you last week, 

this is just one of several solutions we are pursuing. 
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 As you have seen from our proposed budgets through September 

30 of this year, savings measures will be another important tool in addressing 

this challenge.  As a reminder, we have proposed $1.3 billion in de-

appropriations, $3.2 billion in reduced or delayed first quarter 

appropriations, and we have withdrawn approximately $850 million of the 

Governor’s proposed priorities.   

 None of these decisions were reached lightly and, regrettably, we 

understand the pain that will stem from many of them.  But this only serves 

to underscore the need for additional options, including additional Federal 

assistance and legislative authorization to borrow in order to help ensure our 

ability to meet the needs of our residents to the best extent possible.  

Otherwise, the type of cuts that would be necessary to balance the entire 

projected shortfall through FY 2021 would be devastating at both the State 

and local level. 

 Keep in mind that 70 to 80 percent of the State budget goes out 

the door in the form of State aid and grants-in-aid, which largely support 

schools, local governments, higher education, property tax relief, seniors, and 

health insurance for those most in need.   

 The proposed legislation before you is crucial for many reasons, 

primarily because it will provide both the State and local governments -- that 

do not otherwise have the opportunity to access the Federal Municipal 

Liquidity Facility -- with a valuable tool to address the unprecedented budget 

challenges we face together in a balanced way in conjunction with savings 

measures. 

 Our intention is to borrow only as much as absolutely necessary. 
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We understand borrowing is not free, but it is one of several crucial options 

we need at our disposal. 

 Right now, the market is stable because there is a buyer in the 

form of the Federal Reserve.  But we don’t know what will happen when that 

buyer goes away at the end of December. 

 In the interest of protecting taxpayers as much as possible, it is 

urgent that we take advantage of the favorable rate offered through the 

Federal lending facility, and the stabilizing effect it is having on the public 

and private markets, while we can.  This facility was created by the Federal 

government with the explicit intent of assisting State and municipal 

governments across the country with their budgetary challenges, recognizing 

the severe financial difficulties created by the COVID-19 pandemic.  This 

proves that New Jersey is not alone. 

 It’s not a question of whether we will need to borrow to help 

meet our obligations, but when. 

 The tough decisions we have made, and proposed so far, will only 

get us to a $344 million fund balance as of June 30, and a $494 million fund 

balance ending as of September 30.  In volatile economic times such as this, 

that type of surplus is the equivalent of a rounding error and could disappear 

in a flash. 

 Keep in mind our analysts predict that should we see a second 

surge of the virus -- in the fall, for example -- we could be looking at an 

additional revenue shortfall of $1 billion; meaning, even more difficult budget 

adjustments will need to be made. 

 The only certainty right now is that the forecasting situation is 

extremely uncertain.  There is near universal agreement -- from Treasury, 
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from OLS, and from economists across the country -- that revenue projections 

are subject to extreme volatility.  The $2.4 billion from the Federal 

Coronavirus Relief Fund that we have received to date will certainly help 

weather this storm.  But without more robust and flexible Federal aid, as well 

as the ability to borrow, the cuts that will be necessary to produce a balanced 

FY 2021 budget will be devastating to New Jerseyans and to our economy. 

 Chairwoman, I want to thank you for recognizing how crucial it 

is that we have this option, and for your sponsorship of this important 

legislation. 

 Thank you all for your time, and we are happy to take any 

questions. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you, 

Treasurer. 

  Treasurer, I know you set out in your testimony really the 

outlook of what we’re facing; and this really also adds on to what we heard 

you say last Thursday. 

 If you could walk us a little bit through this Bill and just, in 

layman’s terms, explain the flexibility that you are looking for with regards 

to being able to go out and borrow money. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Well -- and I’ll bring in Dini 

and Michael to kind of go through the details on the legislation -- but the 

flexibility is because we have such severe shortfalls facing us; and the volatility 

in determining what those shortfalls could ultimately be.  In order to, sort of, 

have a balanced approach to meeting these shortfalls, we need this tool.  

Because without it, we cannot borrow in order to -- we can’t utilize any of 

these funds that could be available funds that were set up for this purpose. 
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And neither can local governments, that did not receive direct funding from 

the Federal government -- or direct access to the MLF in order to borrow for 

their own needs.  This also gives them -- the legislation gives them the ability 

to take advantage of that market through the State; we would apply on their 

behalf.  But it gives them access to those markets. 

  Michael or Dini, do you want to, sort of, walk through how this 

will work from an Office of Public Finance point of view? 

M I C H A E L   K A N E F:  Absolutely.  

 Thank you very much, Treasurer. 

 I’ll start; and Dini, please jump in if you’ve got a correction or an 

amplification. 

 The draft legislation essentially provides for five different types 

of borrowing.  Each of the pieces is, in fact, a GO, or general obligation 

borrowing for the State.  So the different types of borrowings don’t relate to 

the type of State obligation.  The State obligation in each instance would be 

the general obligation of the State.  And that means that it is the first 

payment for any debt of any type issued by the State; and it is, in fact, a 

payment that essentially requires the full faith and credit of the State to back 

the debt obligation. 

  So we do have other types of State obligations.  We have State 

contract bonds; we have certain types of short-term debt that are not general 

obligation bonds; and we also have moral obligation bonds that the State 

makes payment on.  Those types of bonds are not general obligation bonds 

of the State, and those have a lower payment priority from a State 

perspective. 
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  The first type of general obligation authorization that’s provided 

by the draft bond is, in fact, an authorization to provide for issuance into the 

public and private capital markets.  That is the normal course of operation 

for the State.  Normally, when the State issues its debt, it issues its debt into 

the public or private capital markets.  Today, those markets are quite volatile, 

largely because of COVID.  There have been elevated overall interest rates 

for borrowers in those markets.  And the availability of funding for different 

types of borrowers is somewhat reduced, compared to where borrowing 

availability was prior to the crisis.  However, the State does believe that it can 

access those markets today at relatively attractive rates; and that we do expect 

that those markets will continue to normalize over the coming weeks and 

months, and we would expect that the rates that the State would pay for 

borrowing in those markets will continue to decline over the coming months 

back into a more normalized range. 

 The second type of borrowing that’s authorized is borrowing 

from the Federal Reserve’s Municipal Liquidity Facility, sometimes referred 

to as the MLF.  That’s a facility that was set up as authorized by the CARES 

Act.  It is provided by the Federal government.  The total funding for that 

facility is about $500 billion.  That is made available to states and other large 

municipal entities.  So it’s also made available to municipalities, including 

large cities and also large counties, in both cases, that meet certain population 

requirements.  

 The allocation that is available to the State of New Jersey is 

approximately $9 billion in size.  That’s not something that’s set by the draft 

statute; that is set by the terms of the Federal Reserve facility itself.  It’s not 

anticipated that the State would borrow that full amount.  But the nice thing 
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about the Federal Reserve facility is that it has acted as a stabilizing 

component for the public capital markets, and it also has provided price 

certainty for the State.  So right now, it is anticipated that if the State was to 

borrow from the Federal Reserve MLF, the cost to the State would be about 

280 basis points; that means about 2.8 percent.  There is a limiting factor, 

and that is the State can only borrow for a term of three years from the MLF; 

and at the end of three years, the State would need to either repay that debt 

in full; or to the extent it doesn’t repay some are all of that debt, would need 

to refinance that debt into the public or private capital markets for a longer 

term. 

  The pricing of that facility and the term of that facility are 

currently being reconsidered in Washington D.C.  There is some discussion 

about decreasing the pricing of that facility for borrowers, and also about 

extending the term, potentially to as long as five years.  It’s not clear whether 

those changes will be implemented, but there is discussion in Washington 

today about making the facility more borrower-friendly. 

  The third type of borrowing that is authorized is the 

authorization for the State to borrow on behalf of those local municipalities 

that don’t otherwise have access to the facilities.  So those cities and counties 

that don’t have the population required to borrow directly from the facility, 

the State has the capability to borrow from the facility on behalf of those 

issuers for COVID-related lost revenues and COVID-related expenses. 

  The need to borrow for locals would need to be managed by the 

Administration and the Legislature together to determine what sort of 

borrowing would be appropriate to pass on to the locals.  
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 Just one point that’s important to understand -- the Federal 

Reserve has stated that when the State borrows on behalf of those local 

entities, the Federal Reserve will consider those borrowings to be State 

borrowings; it will not look through to the local municipalities.  So the State 

will be responsible for repaying those amounts.  I would anticipate that, to 

the extent the State was to forward amounts onto the local municipalities, 

there would need to be agreements with the local municipalities to repay the 

State, so that the State would in turn be able to repay the Federal Reserve. 

 The fourth authorization is the authorization that permits the 

State to refinance any debt issued pursuant to the Bond Act.  And refinancing 

is done in the normal course by the State to take advantage of lower interest 

rates, so that if when we issue these bonds and the future interest rates were 

lower, we would be able to refinance to take advantage of those rates.   

 We also, as I mentioned, will need to refinance any borrowings 

from the Federal Reserve MLF at the termination of that facility and the 

maturity of that paper, which currently is three years.  

 Finally, the Bond Act does permit for GO TRAN, or Tax and 

Revenue Anticipation Note borrowing.  In the normal course, the State does 

issue a TRAN; that TRAN is generally authorized by the budget.  And TRANs 

are short-term borrowings that permit the State to balance out cash flow 

needs when its spending occurs prior to its receipt of tax revenue.  So as you 

might imagine, we receive our tax revenue in a lumpy manner, normally on a 

quarterly basis.  But we spend on a weekly and monthly basis across the entire 

course of the year.  So the use of a TRAN is generally for us to fund the early 

monthly and weekly payments that we make during the course of the fiscal 

year, and then the TRAN is normally repaid when we receive our April tax 
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payments.  Again, it’s usually an intra-year borrowing, and it is only to 

manage our cash flow needs.  The TRAN that is authorized, pursuant to the 

Act, would serve a similar purpose; but it would permit us to issue a GO 

TRAN, which we believe would, because it’s a GO or general obligation, price 

at a less expensive level than a normal TRAN.  And the authorization there 

is only for the issuance of a TRAN either in Fiscal Year 2020 or in Fiscal Year 

2021. 

 I apologize if I’ve taken quite a bit of time.  I tried to cover what 

I think are the most important points.  I’m happy to answer any additional 

questions relating to the way the draft Bond Act is structured. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  I appreciate you 

actually going through this, Mr. Kanef, because I think that there’s some 

clarity as to the different options.  I think that some of the points that you’ve 

raised, with regards to what the interest rate would, more or less, be if we 

were going to go through the MLF -- because we did have some questions 

with regards to that.  And I do have a better understanding -- and I think 

everyone else does -- of some of the timelines, because we did have discussions 

whether it was going to be a two-year, a three-year, and now, possibly, a five-

year, which makes it a little bit more flexible as well.  

 And I don’t want to take up all the time myself.  So if 

Assemblyman Burzichelli -- Vice Chair, if you would like to go next; and then 

I can kind of see what other questions haven’t been raised from our 

discussions, and then we can move on that way. 

 Assemblyman. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  Thank you, Chairwoman. 



 
 

12 

 Good morning, again, to the Treasurer and to staff.  Thank you 

for being with us to help explain what this Bill is.  Because frankly, this is this 

is an Administration Bill and an Administration strategy that we’re now 

working through. 

  So a couple of questions come to mind, and I don’t want to go 

too long.  There’s been some commentary made that the reasons for working 

at this pace is that this is a first-come, first-served Federal program to get into 

that Federal loan pool.  Treasurer, is that the case?  Is this first come, first 

served? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  In terms of the MLF, the State 

has been, basically, I wouldn’t call it set aside.  But the money that is available 

to the State -- I don’t think is on a first-come, first-served basis.  It’s more an 

issue -- and I’ll let Michael and Dini speak to this more -- a question of what 

sort of flexibility we have the later we enter into the market. 

  Michael or Dini, do you want to discuss that -- what the 

challenges would be? 

D I N I   A J A M A N I:  Sure, Treasurer, I can address that. 

 The facility size is significant: $500 billion for just 300 or so 

issuers is a large amount of money.  And many of the states won’t-- 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  For the MLF. 

 MS. AJMANI:  For the MLF; exactly, exactly.  For the MLF.  And 

New Jersey itself, including the State, will probably have around 13 or 14 

borrowers.  Two of the cities qualify; nine of the counties qualify.  Of course, 

the State qualifies. 

 The way the Federal Reserve has structured this facility -- they 

kind of want to be the lender of the last resort, not the lender of the first 
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resort.  Which means that many of the issuers, like Texas and North Dakota, 

that have a decent rating, will probably go to the public market to borrow, 

not to the MLF.  So we don’t think the size is going to be an issue -- that if 

you’re not the first one in line ready to borrow, that you will miss your turn. 

We don’t think that’s going to be an issue -- if that answers your question. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  Yes, it answers the question 

completely.  And it’s very important because, early on that was one of the 

reasons for the move for expediting; at least, that was the word that had 

reached the legislative process -- that this was a first come, first served 

structure.  But it’s clear that is not the case now.   

 So at what point, Treasurer, will you borrow, both in the case of 

the $5 billion being requested in general obligation bonds, and also the 

Federal program?  At what point will the Administration move to borrow, 

once this legislation -- in whatever form it finally reaches -- finds its way to 

the Governor’s desk for a signature?  Do you borrow right away, as soon as 

the Bill is signed? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  No, we would need a significant 

lead time, which is--  And I just want to clarify something.  The guidance on 

the MLF has changed over the past couple months from when it was 

announced.  So the issue of the first come, first served has kind of changed 

as we’ve understood more about the Bill.  There is a flexibility challenge in 

waiting longer, but that’s more how many people have gotten into the market, 

if things are changing, in terms of the private-public rates. 

 But we would need -- Office of Public Finance would need at least 

about five to six weeks to get everything in place to allow us to present our 

program to the Federal government, to the Fed Reserve.  Then we would have 
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approximately a two-week approval process, and then we would be able to go 

into the market. 

  Michael, is that correct?  Is that how you would, pretty much 

sum it up, in terms of time constraints? 

 MR. KANEF:  I think there are really two components to this. 

The first is, I think, as the Treasurer stated, it would take us several weeks, 

at a minimum, to be in a position to access either the public capital markets 

or the Federal Reserve facility.  We are working, to the extent we can, to 

prepare in advance to do those things internally to expedite the process.  But  

it would still take the State several weeks to be prepared to either go into the 

public markets or private market -- the Federal Reserve facility.  And then we 

do expect, again, that you’d need to give the Federal Reserve facility or the 

public markets a couple of weeks before you’d actually be able to access the 

cash.   

 I do think -- and this is something that I’m not an expert in -- 

but there have, in the press, been reports of potential for litigation to be filed 

as well.  That would potentially result in an additional substantial delay.  If 

such litigation were to be filed, that would further delay.  You’d need to have 

a court review and then determine an appropriate step forward.  And that 

could add anywhere between a month to, potentially, three months of 

additional delay.  And right now, from our finances, we are forecasting that 

we will have substantial need early in September or, potentially, late in 

August to have some additional cash.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  All right.  You sort of 

answered half my question, there, Michael; and Treasurer, maybe you can 

elaborate a little better.  But I guess, maybe, there isn’t an answer.  
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 So your access -- receiving cash from either of these processes is 

uncertain.  I mean, you don’t have a date specific that if everything went well 

and the Bill was on the Governor’s desk in three weeks and he signed, that 

on a certain date you would have benefited proceeds from one of these 

options here.  There are really two options, the private market and the 

Federal. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Right; there’s not a date certain, 

but we just walked you through what we would need on our end, in terms of 

lead time.  We can’t promise how long it would take the Federal Reserve to 

approve.  We’re assuming, since they have their process now, you know, that 

they’re getting up and running.  So we’re assuming there would be some time 

in the approval process, and then we would be able to go.  So we cannot give 

you a date certain, but we can give you our best estimate, based on prior -- 

what it has taken us in order to get other offerings out to the market. 

 MR. KANEF:  And if I could just add one thing.  I apologize; just 

one thing I’d like to add. 

  In order to apply to the Federal Reserve facility, you have to 

state affirmatively that you have authorization to issue bonds to the Federal 

Reserve.  So that’s a prerequisite for us to move forward.   

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  So I don’t have a calendar 

spread out in front of me.  So Treasurer, do you expect that if everything goes 

well -- and I would feel there are going to be lawsuits of some kind, whether 

or not they find a way to the court or are set aside by the court absent a full 

hearing -- there’s going to be a challenge, to some level, to some of this.  So 

do you anticipate having funds at your availability before September 30? 
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 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Well, that’s the question, 

Assemblyman.  I mean, we’ve been asking about this legislation for a while 

now, because of the need.  And, you know, we’ve now presented a budget, 

that we reviewed with you last Thursday, that gets us through September 30 

with small fund balances, as I said, in a very volatile economic sort of 

forecasting situation. 

 But we’ve put something together with the blend of cuts and 

deferred payments; and then we get to October 1, and we’re looking at the 

whole of -- if we want to have some sort of decent fund balance at close of FY 

2021 on June 30, 2021, we’re looking at about $8 billion that we’re going to 

need to somehow figure out an answer for. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  And in fairness, you’re not 

going to need $8 billion on October 1.  So in the traditional sense of a new 

budget year starting, will you use the TRANs advantage that we use every 

year at the beginning of a new budget year to begin the new budget year on 

October 1?  Or will things grind to a halt if either the $5 billion isn’t 

successfully secured, or the municipal loan isn’t arranged for? 

 So we’re not going to have an $8 billion shortage, aside from on 

paper, from a cash flow standpoint on October 1.  So will you be doing short-

term traditional borrowing on October 1, as you get into the beginning of 

that nine-month budget?  

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Well, from a cash-flow 

perspective, starting October 1, if we pay the items that we are deferring to 

October -- the school funding payment, the pension payment -- we will have 

a cash-flow problem in October.  So that will be an issue. 
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  And I don’t know, Michael or Dini, if you want to add anything 

to that. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  But Treasurer-- 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  The unique thing about the 

TRAN is that that has to be paid off within the same fiscal year that we apply 

for it.  So we’ve got -- whatever we borrow in TRAN has to be paid for by the 

end of that fiscal year.  So we need to know that we’re going to have enough 

revenue coming in to pay that off. 

 Is there anything you want to add to that, Michael or Dini? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Treasurer, before   

you-- 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  I’m sorry. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  I think what Vice 

Chair Burzichelli is just, really, trying to get at is -- and John, I’m sorry, you 

let me know if I’m wrong -- as soon as October hits, are you saying that we 

will no longer be able to -- we have exhausted our short-term borrowing?  Is 

that what we’re hearing? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  You mean--  Well, we have 

exhausted--  Well, we will have a plan in place through the temporary budget, 

because we extended-- 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Okay. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  That sunsets -- I think it’s  

September 25. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  I think that that’s  

what we wanted a little bit more clarity on, Treasurer. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Okay, okay. 
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 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Am I correct, Vice 

Chair? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Is that what you’re-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  Well, Chairwoman, you’re 

never incorrect, and you’re absolutely correct on this. 

 And I raise the question because it’s all about timing.  And I say 

this to everyone-- 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  Listen, clearly, we’re going 

to have to borrow something.  The question is always about timing, and how 

do we get through this.  And then I’d like to start to wind down on this, so 

others can jump in. 

 There was talk last Friday among some that the interest rate on 

the Federal side could exceed or be close to 10 percent.  Now it sounds like 

it’s going to be closer to 5 percent.  Is that correct, based on the 2.8 percent 

prime, or whatever the term is, with the basis points factored in? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Go ahead, Michael. 

 MR. KANEF:  The 2.8 percent is the expected all-in cost for the 

Federal borrowing under the facility.  So we would anticipate that for a three-

year borrowing we would be charged 2.8 percent. 

  Again, in the public capital markets, right now, I would expect 

the pricing would be -- depending upon the day, because those markets are 

quite volatile -- slightly more or slightly less than that amount.  Again, I do 

expect over the coming weeks and months that the public market interest 

rate would be lower than that.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  All right. 
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 And Chairwoman, let me work to a close on a couple points here 

for just a couple quick questions. 

 One, it’s been mentioned that the Municipal Loan Fund is 36 

months; maybe going to five years.  That, of course, will span a couple of 

different budgets.  I’m just curious; what’s the final five years, if this economy 

continues to drag?  Do you anticipate they’ll make other provisions? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Right; and I think Michael laid 

that out in his answer earlier.  But to the extent we can’t, we would be 

refinancing that within that window. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  All right.  And you have a  

number of de-appropriations as you worked to get this thing balanced to 

September 30.  If this bonding authorization comes to fruition, the 

Administration can’t spend unless we appropriate, obviously, in a given 

budget year.  Is it the Administration’s intention to try and to put these cuts 

back into play if borrowing is achieved in advance of close-out on September 

30?  Because we would not necessarily have a say in something already 

appropriated.  We will a have a big voice in what happens in the nine-month 

budget; we don’t have a big voice in in this present environment we’re in. 

 So if you successfully borrow at a more-rapid pace, is the 

Administration’s position that you’re going to re-appropriate or reinstate the 

cuts that you have made to get us to a balance on September 30? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  You were blinking out a little 

bit on that, Assemblyman. 

 Were you saying would we re-appropriate what we have 

proposed to de-appropriate on June 30 in order to -- if we had the bonding 

authority available? 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  I am.  I’m just wondering 

what the mindset is in the Administration.  If the bonding comes to fruition 

at a pace a little ahead of schedule, and you find yourself with funds available, 

would you move immediately to spend the money that the Administration 

has chosen to cut, to help get the budget into balance to close us out on 

September 30? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  You know, we haven’t had 

those discussions, so I can’t give you an answer on that right now.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  All right; thank you. 

 Treasurer, thank you; thank you, Michael, as well. 

 Thank you, Chairwoman.  I may have something for round two, 

but that’s it for the moment. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you, Vice 

Chair.  

 Assemblyman Wirths. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  Thank you, Chairwoman.  And 

thank you, Treasurer, for coming in today.  I really appreciate it, and I know 

that we’re up against the time clock so I’ll try to be as quick as possible.  

 This should be the last option after all else is exhausted, and I 

don’t feel that we’ve exhausted all other options.  I mean, the bonding -- 

whether it’s a Whitman or a McGreevey bonding -- has got us into this mess 

and has caused us to be the most indebted state in the nation.  As many of 

us recall, the Whitman bonding was $2.8 billion, and it has cost the taxpayers 

-- I don’t know, $12 billion to date.  We’re still paying $500 million a year 

for bonds from 1997.  
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 But the question I have, Treasurer -- and I’m going to go quickly, 

because I respect -- I really appreciate you being here, and the time -- what 

makes you think that this is constitutional, the borrowing for revenue?  What 

is your answer on how this is a constitutional, going around the voters and 

being done -- trying to be done by the Legislature.  What is the 

Administration’s argument for that? 

 Thank you. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Well, I just want to point out   

-- you brought up Whitman bonds.  And since the Governor came into office 

in January of 2018, we have really worked to, sort of, limit our debt service 

obligations.   

 But the Whitman bonds were unique.  And you’re right; we are 

paying several hundred million dollars a year regularly on those bonds 

because of the way they were structured.   

 I don’t know if--  Dini, do you want to just talk about the CABs, 

and why those are unique and should not be equated to what we’re doing 

now?  I’m not going to get into the legal arguments; I’ll leave that to the 

lawyers to-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  Sure. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  We’ve proposed a Bill that we 

believe is constitutional; so I’ll leave it at that. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  I’m sorry, Treasurer; you don’t 

have to--  I was giving it more as a point.  You’re welcome to answer it, but I 

was just pointing out -- and under McGreevey too -- how bonding has been 

disastrous for a state -- one of the worst financial conditions in the nation, 

and the most indebted state.  I didn’t want to take up any more of your time; 
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I was just pointing it out -- on what the destruction that bonding in the past 

has caused this great State of New Jersey and put us in this financial condition 

that we’re in.  And, obviously, I get the COVID additional. 

   But if you won’t answer the legal, then maybe, through the 

Chair, maybe the Chair could--  The concerns that came up today are--  You 

know, they must be authorized, and we’re worried about additional lawsuits.  

And I think the question has to be, then, why not put this in front of the 

voters.  The Governor has changed elections, has moved dates, has used 

executive orders.  Why, if there’s any doubt, if you want to have a clean Bill 

that can stand up to the constitutional muster -- when we can put this out to 

the voters?  Why are we afraid to ask the voters?  Our voters are very aware 

of the very turbulent times our nation is going through: the COVID and the 

horrific actions that have been taking place.  So Americans are smart, New 

Jerseyans are smart -- why can’t we put this up to the voters and have them 

approve this?  And then we take all the other things off the table -- all the 

uncertainty comes off the table if this goes on the ballot.  And the Governor 

has the authority to move this, the legislators have the authority to move this 

to a November ballot; and maybe even with the great legal minds in Trenton, 

maybe even sooner. 

  But why can’t we ask the voters for approval on this, and make 

sure it’s done properly? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:   I mean, I think you hit the nail 

on the head, Assemblyman.  These are extraordinary times.  We are in a fiscal 

crisis, like states across the country.  We are looking at a severe budget crisis; 

and if we accept all of the cuts that the Administration is proposing getting 

through September 30, we still have very small fund balances for both June 



 
 

23 

30 and September 30.  And then come October 1, we’re looking at pension 

payments that have to be made, school funding payments that need to be 

made; you know, billions in payments that we are going to be needing to 

make quickly.   

 So you know, I think it’s a question of, this is a crisis, it’s a 

disaster, and we need to act accordingly and get access to this funding -- which 

the Federal government has established and set up only because we are all 

faced -- we’re all in the same boat and facing these enormous COVID-19-

related crises -- to give governments the opportunity to try and help get 

through the crises as well as possible. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  And Treasurer, I appreciate that, 

and there is nobody on this call today who doesn’t have the best interest of 

New Jersey and know that we’re in difficult times, and want to make sure our 

state can continue, and our all of our workers and our essential workers.  But 

I just don’t see the need to jeopardize and break the Constitution when, as 

you said earlier in testimony, this has been going on for months. We’ve had 

months and months, and you didn’t have to be an economist to know that 

we were headed into dire straits.  And we procrastinated along; we could have 

had this definitely in time for the voters, and had done it the proper way and 

the legal way.  And I’m worried now.  And Assemblyman Burzichelli, when 

he was asked, it sounds to me like we’re not even taking off of the table the 

modest cuts -- the roughly $1 billion in cuts from the budget.  And I think 

it’s important to point out to the taxpayers that those aren’t really cuts.  

We’re taking the senior freeze away, and the Homestead rebate.  These are 

tax cuts that are going to help stimulate the economy and help the most 

vulnerable.  So really we’re taking away revenue from our citizens in that 
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billion-dollar number.  And I still -- I don’t see any logical reason why we 

can’t ask the voters and the Administration to prepare a good case and tell 

them the times and get it on the ballot.  Even if you have a special election, 

or do it--  But to have this thing tied up in courts, and when it loses, I think 

they’re going to regret if this gets pushed through today.  

  And I think it’s also important -- we all know the devastation 

that COVID has done, and the loss of life, and the illness, and the cost to all 

of the State of New Jersey.  But I think it’s important to point out that 

billions and billions of dollars have come in from the Federal government on 

the COVID -- you know, with the hospitals, and the transit, and all across 

the board.  I think the number is somewhere around $8 billion or $9 billion 

that is coming in.   

 But I’m not convinced today that we’re not going to draw this 

down and get into another 35-year bond payment and just devastate the 

State on our bond ratings.  I think this is just going to be moved on, if it goes 

through today, to our kids and our grandchildren.  I don’t even have 

grandchildren yet, but maybe my great-grandchildren.  I don’t know when 

and if this will ever be paid off, but I think it’s very destructive having an 

open checkbook.  And I’m worried that it’s going to stop us from finding any 

inefficiencies -- which we all know there are, and can be cut back in 

government.   

 So I appreciate your time.  And I don’t know if you have anything 

to add, but I think the only way to properly move this forward is to put it on 

a ballot; and the Governor sure has the power to try to put it on the ballot 

and obey the law and the Constitution, which we all swore to uphold.  

 So thank you. 



 
 

25 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  And the only thing, 

Assemblyman-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  Sure. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  --I would add, is to call it an 

open checkbook is a misnomer.  Because you guys control the checkbook; you 

are the appropriators by law.  So we certify revenues, you have the checkbook. 

 So I’ll just leave it at that. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  Okay; I wish it was that easy. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Assemblyman, before 

I move on. 

  I respect you tremendously, and I think you know that.  But I 

also just wanted to clarify one or two points. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  Sure. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Number one, we’ve 

had 11 downgrades under a Republican Administration.  For eight years the 

TTF was run solely -- and you know this; you were the Commissioner of 

Labor -- that for eight years the TTF was run solely on bonding and debt.  So 

I think that we would be remiss if we’re going to point fingers at which 

Administration did what--  But this is -- unfortunately, this is due to years of 

just, kind of, plugging in the holes.   

 Unfortunately, with regards to the timeline, I think we have 

waited this long because we wanted to make sure that the Administration was 

in real need to be able to go out for money.  We know what this will obviously 

do to our bond rating.  But I think that -- I’m glad that the Treasurer clarified 

that the most important point of all of this is just the fact that if the 
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Administration seeks any further funding than what they initially requested 

for, they have to come back to the Legislature. 

  And with that, I just want to go on to Assemblyman McKeon. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  Thank you, Chair. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN McKEON:  Thank you, Madam Chairperson. 

 And I join Assemblyman Burzichelli in indicating you could 

never be wrong. 

 You know, frankly I was going to seek to clarify several of the 

points made.  And I think that my questions, frankly, are not directed at the 

Treasurer who stepped back saying, “I’ll leave it to the lawyers to discuss the 

appropriateness of this,” and maybe just change it to remarks when we vote. 

I just note that it’s just astonishing, as in 1947 the founders of the New Jersey 

Constitution were such to put into that document precisely the 

circumstances, in response to the Great Depression, that sit there today, that 

have this, in my legal opinion, meet constitutional muster. 

  The second piece -- if I can ask one question to the Treasurer, to 

make clear; because this was, I think, maybe where John was getting at a little 

bit, and yourself stepped in, Chairperson. 

 As it relates to waiting until October 1 -- we could never get to 

that point and start to spend.  You know, once you’re in that nine-month 

period, you would have to immediately stop spending, in any way shape or 

form, to be in a position to not expend the $5 billion that we’re looking to 

supplement that fiscal year through this loan.  You’d have to stop 

immediately; which is, frankly, the answer to, I believe, Assemblyman Wirths’ 

question, “Why can’t you wait until November?” 
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 Of course you can.  We have a nine-month consolidated period 

where this money has to be ready to be primed into the system, or else that 

would be the day of reckoning.  So that’s why it’s so important to move in 

the way that we are, and why it’s impractical if it was required under the law 

-- which I would argue it wasn’t -- to bring this to the voters.  

 So with that, I’m going to just hold my comments; and maybe, 

Madam Treasurer, you could comment on the cash flow, if you will, from 

that perspective that I’m trying to raise. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Yes; if we didn’t have this in 

place and October 1 arrived, we’d be in an immediate reserve situation.  We’d 

be in the situation where we find ourselves currently, with a billion dollars, 

approximately, in reserve.  Because we do not -- we are obligated to have a 

balanced budget; we’ll need to have the resources in place.  So that would be 

-- we’d be on an immediate spending freeze, and money would be in reserve 

for the nine-month budget starting October 1. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN McKEON:  And through the Chair, if I can--  

And the kind of things would have to get cut, because so much of it -- between 

pension payments--   We’re obligated under the Constitution to pay it -- 

right? -- $4 billion.  For school funding, the school funding formula -- 

obligation to pay it, $10 billion.  We’re still a country of laws; we owe $4 

billion a year just in debt service.  So all those things would continue to have 

to be paid.  

 So where would, on October 1 -- what kind of position would we 

be in?  Basically, we would cut out State government; that would be the only 

amount of money that would be left that we would have any discretion over. 
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 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Correct.  And our piece of that 

budget--  As I mentioned, 70 to 80 percent is going out into school districts 

and local governments.  So our piece of that is relatively small compared to 

the rest of the budget.  

 So you’re correct.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN McKEON:  Thank you; thank you, Madam 

Chair. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Before I move on to 

Assemblyman Benson, Madam Treasurer, if you can just -- we keep talking 

about how low the cash flow will be in the interim period between late August 

and September.  Have you drilled down, and can you tell us, more or less, 

how low our cash flow will really be towards the end of August into 

September?  

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Yes; you know, I don’t have the 

September number in front of me.  But because we needed to propose a June 

30 close-out and a September 30 budget, we will have--  We are really going 

to face our problem come October 1, because that’s when--  To get to October 

1, we had to make the cuts, we deferred payments, we had to take all the 

actions we did to end up with some type of fund balance to get through the 

year.  We will also have the Coronavirus Relief Fund monies; at least some 

of it is in the accounts.   

 So in terms of cash flow, we have gotten ourselves, with this 

proposed budget, through September 30.  But, you know, the wheels come 

off the bus October 1. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Okay, thank you. 

 Assemblyman Benson. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  Thank you, Madam. 

Chairwoman.  

 Madam Treasurer, I just want to get a clarification. 

 You mentioned about the MLF -- when we borrow on behalf of 

the smaller counties and towns that aren’t eligible to borrow directly, I think 

you had mentioned that there would need to be additional legislation from 

the Legislature and signed by the Governor in order to direct how that money 

is going to be doled out.  Or is that something that’s going to be done by 

virtue of this legislation here? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  This legislation -- and Dini and 

Michael, you can correct me if I’m wrong -- but this legislation was drafted 

to enable us to borrow on behalf of those government -- those locals that did 

not receive direct funding through the MLF.  

 Correct, Michael and Dini? 

 MS. AJMANI:  That’s correct.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  So I’m going to ask that question 

again. 

 So this allows you to borrow the money, but how it gets approved 

by local government services, how much municipalities and counties are 

allowed to ask for -- all of that kind of programmatic piece of implementing 

that, where’s that coming from?  Is that purely going to be administrative, or 

are you going to be coming back to the Legislature to seek approval on how 

that happens? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Dini, are you aware of-- 

 MS. AJMANI:  Yes, sure.  Sure, I’ll try to answer that.  
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 So the discussions on that are still fairly preliminary.  The Act--  

The MLF does allow us to borrow on behalf of local and state governments, 

and all we’re seeking right now is the authority to do that.  How those funds 

then get spent in helping locals, and counties, and school boards is something 

that I think will have to go through the a legislative body, in terms of--  For 

example, if the State aid is increased, or grant aid is increased, or school aid 

is increased, I think all of that would be part of the budget process. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  Okay. 

 MS. AJMANI:  At least, that’s what my understanding is. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  So that’s my second question.  

You have five to six weeks lead time of putting together the application, but 

we don’t know the municipal aid figures, based on whether we get this money.  

And so there’s kind of a chicken-or-egg question of how much are we going 

to seek on behalf of those municipalities, when they may not know what their 

needs are yet, depending on how much the budget reduces aid. 

 So I’m just questioning what’s going to happen. 

 MS. AJMANI:  So there are many options available to locals 

away from tapping MLF through the State.  For example, many counties can 

tap MLF directly, and many of those counties actually have a better credit 

rating than the State does, so their cost of funding would be cheaper than 

what the State’s cost of funding would be.  

  So I am not part of the discussions, but my understanding from 

speaking with the Governor’s Office is that there are many other options that 

are being reviewed right now to help locals and counties, away from using the 

State as a proxy to borrow on their behalf. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  Okay; maybe through you, 

Madam Chair, we can get more information on that.  Because I know that’s 

a lot of the questions that I’m hearing from both mayors and county 

executives, from those places that can’t go to the MLF directly, and currently 

have not received the authority to go borrowing beyond TRANs. 

 My other question is related to those independent authorities, 

and other things that aren’t municipalities or counties, but also are facing 

revenue shortfalls.  Is there anything in the MLF for them, or is there other 

support in this Bill from the State to cover those shortfalls? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Go ahead, Michael; do you 

want to speak to that, or Dini? 

 MR. KANEF:  Sure. 

 So there are a number of different entities that are permitted to 

receive funding pursuant to the terms of the Federal Reserve MLF.  But as we 

said earlier, only a small minority of them are sizable enough to borrow on 

their own behalf.  In addition, the rules of the facility only permit one 

borrower at the State level; so that to the extent that the other entities, that 

are permitted to borrow pursuant to the terms of facility -- besides, for 

example, local governments -- do need money, and there is a determination 

made that those folks would best be served by having money provided to 

them pursuant to borrowing from the Federal facility, the State would have 

to borrow on their behalf and then provide them with funds.  And that’s a 

determination, that as Dini suggested, is in its very preliminary discussions. 

So I don’t think I’ve got a final answer for you, other than to state that those 

entities would need to have the State borrow on their behalf and pass funds 

through, to the extent there’s a determination to do so. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  And this legislation, I know, does 

that for the MLF.  Does it also allow the State to do that in the private sector 

and public sector as well? 

 MR. KANEF:  I would say I believe that, pursuant to the terms 

of the draft legislation, the State could borrow at the GO level and make a 

determination to pass those funds through to the localities.  But I’d have to 

get a confirmation on that from the Attorney General’s Office, and we can 

do that for you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  Okay, thank you. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  And some would already have 

their own ability.  I was just saying, and some already have their own ability 

to go take advantage of those markets.  Correct, Michael? 

 MR. KANEF:  Absolutely.  Many of those entities have the 

capability to enter the public and private markets on their own behalf.  And 

in fact, many of those entities actually have ratings from the credit rating 

agencies that are equal to or superior to the State’s rating. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  Would they be able to do that, 

though, for lost revenue, or only for -- or property expenses?  I would assume 

they could not, without further direction from the Legislature and the State 

government. 

 If I’m wrong, please let me know.  That’s a question we’re getting 

from mayors. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  I think that would be--  I mean, 

they would know better what--  They don’t have any -- the same restrictions 

that we have, in terms of borrowing, that would require this legislation -- I 

don’t believe.   So I don’t think they would have the same restrictions.   
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 But Michael, go ahead and weigh in if you want. 

 MR. KANEF:  I would just say that--  Again, I do believe that the 

legislation explicitly permits the State to borrow on behalf of those locals so 

that they can -- and then pass that cash on to the locals for revenue 

replacement as well.  And I think that they do have the capability to borrow 

in the public capital markets directly for those purposes; again, subject to 

appropriate oversight. 

 But I think that this is an important tool, in any event, for the 

locals.  And the way the legislation is crafted explicitly permits it, would be 

useful for many of those municipalities that might not have the ability to 

access the public capital markets on their own. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BENSON:  Okay; no, that’s all I have.  

 Thank you, Madam Chair; thank you, Madam Treasurer; thank 

you Michael and Dini. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Assemblywoman 

Muñoz, please. 

  ASSEMBLYWOMAN MUÑOZ:  Thank you; thank you, 

Madam Chair. 

 You know, I have just two questions. 

 Treasurer, when you began, you said that we’re doing this in the 

interest of protecting taxpayers.  And it, in my view, when we look at this, 

are we really protecting the taxpayers?  Because as we go out through this 

borrowing, the way we’re going to have to pay this back is, it’s going to be 

regressive taxes.  It’s going to hurt those who have the least ability to pay it 
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back: the middle class, the working class.  It’s going to be through the increase 

in your sales tax, increase in the property tax.  

 So my question is a pretty broad question.  But I don’t know -- 

are we doing enough in every way we possibly can to protect the taxpayers?  

If we could look at ways to not have so much borrowing, so that--  Because 

we are going to have to pay this back.  This is not a grant, this is a loan.  And 

again, it’s going to hurt our middle class in New Jersey, and that’s who we’re 

looking out for.  

  And I just have the questions:  Are we doing enough to protect 

the taxpayers?  Can we look for further cuts, can we look for other ways so 

that we don’t have to have the borrowing that will hurt the taxpayers? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Thank you, Assemblywoman. 

 And I just want to point out -- and this is a follow-up on an earlier 

discussion we had on cash flow -- this is more a concern about having a budget 

that allows us to operate in the State.  If we do not have this borrowing, and 

some additional Federal funding potentially, we are going to have to have $7-

plus billion in cuts in order to have a budget.  The Governor won’t be able to 

certify if we don’t have those cuts in place.  We would shut down, essentially. 

  So this is an extraordinary crisis we’re faced with, extraordinary 

numbers we’re faced with.  And, you know, as I mentioned also in my opening 

remarks, this is a time when the people of New Jersey are needing services 

more than ever.  I mean, they’re looking to the State to provide services more 

than ever.  And we would essentially be faced with shutting down October 1 

if we don’t have -- if we can’t find $7-plus billion in cuts or revenue in order 

to begin the next fiscal year.   
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 So that’s the challenge we’re facing.  And this, we feel, gives us 

the balanced approach we need to allow us to meet the needs of our residents. 

It clearly will also include belt-tightening; we’ve made that clear, and I made 

that clear in our remarks on Thursday.  You can it see from the budget we’ve 

proposed and the cuts the Governor’s made in his priorities for this year. 

 But unless we find, you know, $7-plus billion in cuts going into 

the next year, we will not be able to operate as a State.  So that’s the challenge 

we’re facing, and this is our proposed way of addressing it in a balanced way. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MUÑOZ:   But you just said that you 

may need borrowing and cuts.  So maybe we could take a closer look to see 

if we can, sort of, move that borrowing number down and increase the cuts. 

  My second question I have for you is, when we were talking 

about the MLF, and the costs, and the percentage of interest rates, and to 

pay it out over three years.  And then, at the end of three years -- or five years, 

if possible -- that we would, then, have to perhaps refinance.  

 You know, what strikes me is that we keep talking about the  

remarkably low interest rates.  What assurances, or even projections, do you 

have that our interest rates are--  Because everyone keeps talking about the 

interest rates may be lower.  Well, how do we get lower than we are now?  

And there’s a great chance that those interest rates could be much higher in 

three to five years.  So have you factored in that increase in interest rates?  I 

mean, we just can’t keep going down lower and lower.  So that has to be a 

part of the process when you’re looking at borrowing. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Yes.  Michael, did you-- 

 MS. AJMANI:  If I may answer that, Treasurer? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Oh, Dini; okay. 
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 MS. AJMANI:  If I may just address that. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Go ahead, Dini. 

 MS. AJMANI:  So if we were to borrow in the public market, one 

of our goals would be to borrow for a longer term than just three years.  So 

what we’re finding is that, as there is a buyer of last resort in the Fed, the 

public market has really stabilized and the banks have come to us offering us 

longer-term debt at terms that are very similar, if not better, than what the 

Fed is offering.   

 And therefore, what this Bill does is give us a choice.  At the time 

that we’re ready to borrow, which market is better for us?  And obviously, 

our preference would be to borrow at a lower rate for longer, versus using 

MLF, in case the rates that are available in the public market are better for 

longer-term debt.  

 So that’s one thing I wanted to address. 

 I also wanted to say that we are well aware of the cost of 

borrowing.  This is not a choice we’re making; this is an option we need to 

have.  Many of you are small business owners, and you understand that when 

there is no visibility into where the revenues are going to come from and how 

much those revenues will be, and you know that you have a power structure 

that is inflexible, you want to have all the options available to you, especially 

if a banker approaches you with a loan at a very reasonable rate.  And all 

we’re asking for here is to have that option available to us.  But we are well 

aware -- and rating agencies remind us every time in their report -- we are well 

aware that this borrowing does not come with zero cost; that our fixed costs 

will go up, our debt service costs will go up, rating agencies will see that the 
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same amount of revenue, or even a smaller amount of revenue, is now 

supporting a larger debt.   

 So cuts and structural changes to reduce the cost would definitely 

be a place we will go, not just the borrowing.  

 I hope that helps. 

 MR. KANEF:   Can I just add one additional thing? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MUÑOZ:  Thank you. 

 And just as-- 

 Yes; sorry. 

 MR. KANEF:  I’m sorry for cutting you off. 

 I just wanted to add one additional factual point. 

 The borrowing that the State would do under the Federal MLF 

is callable at any time by the State.  Which means that at any time during 

the three-year term of that loan, if the rates in the public markets are more 

advantageous for the State, we would have the capability to refinance at that 

point in time.  So we’re not going to be stuck waiting for the three-year term 

to determine whether the rates at that point in time are better for the State. 

We will have the opportunity, over the entire period of the three years, to 

monitor the public and private capital markets and refinance longer-term at 

an earlier point, if it is beneficial for the State. 

 And again, I apologize for cutting you off. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MUÑOZ:  And it certainly is a possibility 

that we could have another credit downgrade from the credit rating agencies, 

which would also increase our rates as we go out those three to five years.  Is 

that not correct, is that not a possibility? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Rating agencies-- 
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 MS. AJMANI:  That is always a possibility. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Okay.  Yes, the rating agencies 

would like to see us approach this in a balanced way, so that is what we are 

trying to do here.  They want to see that we’re making the tough decisions 

we need to on the spend side, and they understand the need for a balanced 

approach in terms of needing Federal direct funding and the need to borrow.  

As we said, this MLF was specifically set up to give every state and many local 

governments the ability to have access to funding because of this COVID- 

related crisis that we’re facing.  

 So we’re in regular contact with the credit rating agencies, you 

know, and we’ll see how it proceeds going forward.  

 But this is part of a balanced approach that I think all of us 

recognize that we need to take to address the challenges.  

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN MUÑOZ:  Thank you.  

 And just as a final statement -- just to do everything we can to 

protect the taxpayer.  Because again, it’s going to be those who can least 

afford it who are going to be hurt the most by this -- meaning, when we have 

to pay it back.   

 So that’s it for me; thank you.  

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you, 

Assemblywoman. 

 Assemblyman Gordon Johnson. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHNSON:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  

 I just need some clarification real quick, recognizing the situation 

we’re in and what can we do to get the State out of this mess. 
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 In the Bill it--  And I need a definition from the Treasurer on 

this.  It talks about refunding bonds and emergency liquidity notes.  I’ve not heard 

these two terms being used during this discussion.  So just give me a 

definition on those two terms, please: refunding bonds and emergency liquidity 

notes. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  The one is the TRAN--  

Michael, do you want to just give--  Michael walked through some of these 

definitions earlier in our remarks.   

 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHNSON:  Okay. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  But why don’t you just reiterate 

some of them? 

 MR. KANEF:  Yes; so absolutely. 

 So the Treasurer is correct.  The emergency liquidity notes would be 

the equivalent of our normal TRAN, and the authorization to (indiscernible) 

GO TRANs here. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHNSON:  Okay, it’s a TRAN; okay. 

 MR. KANEF:  And I’m sorry; the other defined term you were 

looking for? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHNSON:  Emergency liquidity notes. 

 MR. KANEF:  Okay, so the emergency liquidity notes are the 

equivalent of the TRAN. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHNSON:  I’m sorry -- refunding bonds, 

refunding bonds. 

 MR. KANEF:  Yes, I’m sorry. 
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 The refunding bonds is the way we’re describing, in the draft 

legislation, the authorization to refinance bonds that have already been 

issued pursuant to the Act. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHNSON:  Okay, okay; got it. 

 Okay, thanks for the clarification for me.  I had a problem getting 

on the Zoom call at first. 

 In this Bill it does not have a threshold or a cap for these two 

entities here, the bonds and the liquidity notes.  I guess that’s because the 

Legislature will determine the appropriations for this.  Is that correct? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Yes, the Legislature will 

determine-- 

 MR. KANEF:  That is correct.  The Legislature-- 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Go ahead, Michael; go ahead. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHNSON:  I got two “yesses.” 

 MR. KANEF:  That’s right; the Legislature determines any 

spend.  This only provides the authority to borrow. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHNSON:  Right, right; okay. 

 All right, Madam Chair, that’s all I had in my concerns.  And 

thank you for allowing me to ask these two questions.  

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you. 

 Assemblywoman DiMaso. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DiMASO:  Yes. 

 So I’m just curious if the Treasurer, or anybody in the group,  

actually looked into what former Republican Budget Chair Assemblyman 

John DiMaio put forward as an alternative to bonding our children’s future.  

You know, it seems to be a good plan.  We’re always complaining about not 
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getting enough money back from the Federal government, and it seems to 

work for the middle class where the middle class--  It would be a reciprocal 

agreement to, like, how we have in Pennsylvania, where we reciprocate the 

tax -- what you pay from one to the other, except this time with the Federal 

government.  

 He has taken the opportunity to write to all our Congressional 

delegates, as well as the President, and senatorial delegates, and the Speaker, 

and the Majority Leader in the Senate.   

 So I’m just curious if you’ve even given that any thought.  I 

mean, I hate to be the--  I’m not the kind of person who says, “No, no, no,” 

and then doesn’t give you an opportunity or give you an idea to do something 

else.  Neither is -- most of us are not that way.  So I’m just curious what your 

thoughts are on Assemblyman DiMaio’s proposal. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  And I apologize, 

Assemblywoman.  I have not seen the proposal or had a chance to really 

review it.  So I’m not really-- 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN DiMASO:  Okay.  Basically it’s -- so for 

every dollar we get federally--  So it would be similar to the reciprocal tax 

agreement in Pennsylvania, where you don’t have to file Federal income tax 

returns.  New Jersey would just raise the rates to Federal rates, and then New 

Jersey would -- it would be like creating a new form, but for this year only; 

and it would really only apply to the middle class, basically, because with 

gross income and all that stuff--  But this is really--  It seems to me like it 

would be a better plan, so that we can offer real savings.  We discussed this 

last week.  We’re all talking about tax cuts; we’re all saying we don’t want to 

raise taxes.  But we know that, in the end, this may just do that.  
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 So if it’s okay, through the Chair, we’ll send it over to you, and 

would be interested in your opinion on it.  Because in my personal opinion--  

This is only my first year on Budget; I lead a household, lead a business.  It 

sounds like a better thing.  If you don’t have to borrow, then you shouldn’t 

borrow.  And so this, to me, sounds like a better program.  The Federal 

government is getting its money; they’re not printing extra.  But if they’re 

printing extra money anyway, why not just give it back to what we’ve already 

given them?  We’re all complaining about giving too much to the Federal 

government and not getting enough back.  This seems to me to be the answer 

to both issues.  

 So, through the Chair, we’ll send it over to you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you, 

Assemblywoman; thank you for sharing. 

  Assemblyman Spearman. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 I just need a couple of points of clarification. 

 First, it’s my understanding that the Federal guidelines for the 

MLF will allow -- I’m making sure I wrote this down correctly -- will allow the 

State of New Jersey to borrow up to $9 billion.  Is that correct, Madam 

Treasurer or Michael? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Yes, that’s the cap on the 

Federal borrowing for New Jersey, as a State. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Fantastic. 

 I also understand that the State is considering borrowing on 

behalf of counties and municipalities that do not have the ability to tap into 

the MLF.  My question is, if the State does borrow -- and one final point of 
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clarification -- and it’s my understanding that any borrowing that’s done on 

behalf of the municipalities and the counties will also be considered an 

obligation of the State.  Is that correct? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Correct. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Okay, great. 

 So will the borrowing on behalf of the counties and the 

municipalities be considered a part of that $9 billion limit -- MLF limit? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Right.  Under this legislation, 

the municipalities and counties that did not get direct funding--  Those that 

did, that amount is on top of the $9 billion.  For those that did not, that 

would fall currently within the $9 billion limit. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Okay, okay. 

 But you said, or Michael said earlier that any borrowing that’s 

done by municipalities or counties would be considered an obligation of the 

State because the State--  You can only have one borrower per state; did I 

hear that right?  Maybe I didn’t get that right. 

  STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  And I’ll have Michael or Dini 

follow upon this. 

 But when the MLF was first announced, the State was the only 

official borrower on behalf of any counties, municipalities -- anything within 

the state.  Remember I had said earlier that--  So the guidance changed, kind 

of morphed after the announcement.   

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Right, right. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  It was changed, at one point, to 

both-- It used to be we were going to have to -- it was going to close out by 

the end of September; they extended it to December for close-out.  It went 
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from a two-year to three-year plan.  It also allowed certain counties and larger 

municipalities to be able to borrow directly; many counties and cities in New 

Jersey cannot.  Those would come under us, but some are able to go directly 

to the MLF.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Okay, okay. 

 So what I’m trying to get at--  Let me explain what I’m trying to 

get at.  I’m trying to get at the total amount of borrowing that’s going to be 

done from the MLF by the State or municipalities in the state. 

 So I’m hearing that there’s a $9 billion limit.  So it sounds to me 

like the most that the State can borrow, period, will be $9 billion.  That’s for 

the State directly and municipalities and counties that the State is borrowing 

on behalf of.  Is that correct?  

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  That is for the MLF; that is 

correct. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Okay. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  The GO -- the other piece of it, 

the GO bonding -- that would be--  There’s a $5 billion cap currently in the 

Bill on that. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Got it. 

 And then if additional municipalities and counties that are 

eligible to borrow directly from the MLF, borrow additional funds, that will 

not be a State obligation.  Am I hearing that? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Correct.  If they were allowed 

to directly borrow, from the Federal government through the MLF, that 

would be separate and apart from the State borrow.   



 
 

45 

 And again, Dini and Michael, step in if you think I’m getting 

this-- (laughter) 

 MS. AJMANI:  If I could just clarify one thing. 

 The $9 billion number the State can borrow for itself.  The State 

can also borrow on behalf of those counties and locals that directly cannot 

tap MLF.  

 Now, the MLF facility does permit that if you want to go beyond 

$9 billion in order to help the locals that cannot tap the MLF directly, you 

can apply for raising that cap.  You can apply for additional borrowing you 

can do on behalf of those locals and counties.  But it’s not automatic like the 

$9 billion is; you have to seek permission. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Okay; those are my questions. 

 Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Assemblyman, 

essentially it will be the State still borrowing from the MLF.  But it’s really 

the municipalities that are going to then have to pay the State.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN SPEARMAN:  Okay, thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Assemblyman 

Clifton. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CLIFTON:  Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 Hello, Madam Treasurer; how are you? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Good; how are you doing, 

Assemblyman? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CLIFTON:  Good. 

 Just a quick question.  
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 If this passes, and is challenged in the courts like it was in 2004 

-- now it’s different; it’s been 16 years -- but if it is -- but if the challenge -- 

and this is denied, and it’s found unconstitutional, has the Administration 

gamed out a scenario to cover that $7 billion that you say needs to be cut?  I 

mean, have they been looking at those items to cut to deal with this?  I know 

it will be massive cuts, as you mentioned.  But has it been, sort of, gamed out  

how to deal with this, if the courts rule like they ruled back in 2004? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Right.  Well, as you said, we 

would be looking at trying to solve for a massive hole for Fiscal Year 2021.   

 So it would be drastic cuts; and we would have to come up with 

a budget in agreement with the Legislature, and it would be a brutal budget. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CLIFTON:  I just didn’t know if the 

Administration has started to, sort of, game this out and say, “Okay, back in 

2004, something similar was tried; it failed.  Let’s start looking at 2021 now,” 

or the next budget, 2021, and say, “We’re going to have to cut X amount 

percent across the board,” or, “We’re going to look at certain programs.” 

 Has anything like that been, sort of, strategized in case this goes 

south? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Well, you know we are aware 

of what the potential hole would be.  So we would need to look at State 

operations and what goes out into the communities, in terms of school 

assistance and everything else that the State assists our local governments 

with.  And it would all have to be on the table.  You know, our piece, our  

operating piece is very limited from the State perspective.  So it would be a 

massive shutdown in what most people have come to depend on the State 

for.  It’s just a massive hole that we would need to work together to address. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN CLIFTON:  Thank you, Madam Treasurer. 

 Thank you, Madam Chair. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  I’ll just add that at a time when 

most people are turning to their local and state governments to try and help 

them meet the challenges they’re facing-- 

 I’m sorry, Madam Chair. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  No; I think if 

Assemblywoman Verlina -- I was going to call you.  And I think the rest, I 

have gotten in contact with you.  If anyone else has a question, then that 

would conclude round one and we can go for round two. 

 Assemblywoman Verlina Reynolds-Jackson. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN REYNOLDS-JACKSON:  I just had a 

quick question about refunding bonds.  

 Are we talking about bonds that are currently on the books and 

we’re looking to reduce those rates in terms of making more funding 

available?  Or are we talking about these particular -- the MLF bonds, being 

able to refinance them? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  It’s a blend of--  Go ahead, 

Michael or Dini, if you have-- 

 Go ahead. 

 MR. KANEF:  I was just going to say the authorization within 

the draft emergency GO Bond Act only speaks to refinancing of bonds issued 

pursuant to the Act.  So it doesn’t impact bonds that have been authorized 

by other acts. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN REYNOLDS-JACKSON:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you. 
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 I think that that would conclude round one. 

 Assemblyman Burzichelli, do you have a round two question? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  I do; I do, Chairwoman. 

Thank you. 

 Treasurer, so based on all the back-and-forth -- and I suspect, at 

this point, there’s no indication what municipalities would have an interest 

in the State borrowing money on their behalf -- so is it the Administration’s 

intention to access the full $9.2 billion, or $9 billion-plus that you’re able to 

under the MLF program, and have it sit in reserve?  And then does that 

program allow the State to decide how it moves it out to the municipalities?  

Or when that money is borrowed, you have to declare to the Feds how much 

is going to municipalities, counties, and State? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Well, logistically, I’m not sure. 

Maybe Michael can speak to how that would work on behalf of the locals -- 

how we would, sort of, separate out that request from ours. 

 As Dini mentioned earlier, we understand that there are costs 

associated with borrowing.  We have been very judicious, during the past two 

years, to make sure that we try and limit our borrowing, and that we keep 

our payments level.  So we plan to be extremely judicious when we look at 

what we would borrow from the MLF.  We do not want to borrow more than 

is necessary.   

 But again, we have a huge hole to fill, and this is just part of that 

balanced approach to fill it. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  Well, and through the 

Chair, since this program -- the MLF is supposed to run to December, if I 

understand correctly.  So if, in your initial request to them, the economy goes 
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further south and you don’t borrow enough, do you get to go back if the 

program is still operating and ask to borrow up to the full limit that they’re 

allowing to the State?  Or do you have to grab it all at once, put it in your 

pocket, and just be judicious in how it is spent or how you ask the Legislature 

to appropriate it?  What is the strategy?  

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  I believe -- and Dini, maybe you 

or Michael could speak to this -- I think--  I mean, other states have had that 

question -- whether it’s all upfront or whether it can be--  Originally the 

window, as I mentioned, had been very short when we could take advantage. 

It was sunsetted in September.  Now that they’ve extended, I think they’re 

trying to give states the ability to tweak their numbers as they see--  Because 

in states like New Jersey, we’re all seeing late income payments due to the 

extended tax payment deadline.  We’ll get a better feel for what our sales tax 

numbers are going to look like, and it will give states the flexibility to adjust 

their numbers, if need be, over the longer period. 

 But Dini, I don’t know -- you or Michael -- if you have anything 

to add to that. 

 MS. AJMANI:  The only thing I would add, Treasurer, to what 

you said, is the presence of the MLF has stabilized the market.  Right before 

MLF was announced, through the CARES Act, the municipal market was 

very volatile.  It is not a market where there are a ton of buyers and sellers.  

There are very few buyers and, therefore, any change in news or fears move 

this market quite a bit. 

 The Federal Reserve stepped in and announced that it was going 

to be the buyer of last resort, and the market has stabilized.   
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 What we don’t know is what happens to the market post-

December, when the Federal Reserve is no longer buying these bonds. So 

what we don’t want to do is try to do incremental issuances of smaller size 

over a period of three years or something.  Because what we don’t know is 

once the Federal Reserve steps away, will the market still be stable for us to 

issue.  

 So I think our preference would be to get a good understanding 

of what our needs are through the budget process, and then borrow that 

money in one chunk. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  Well, that gets me to my 

point, through the Chair, because there really is not--  You’re going to make 

a borrowing decision in advance of our budget process to try and work out -- 

into the nine months.  So is there no prepayment penalty on the MLF?  I 

recall that being mentioned.  Is there no prepayment penalty? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Correct; there is no prepayment 

penalty.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  So why wouldn’t you simply 

borrow as much as you can possibly borrow and sit on it until we get through 

the appropriation process, through the nine months.  Wait and see if the 

markets stabilize.  And I ask that question because Assemblyman Spearman 

asked:  An honest question of this Committee: is how much money will you 

borrow in this round?  We know there’s a $5 billion base, and you have $9 

billion and change available to you, based on a credit line that the Federal 

government has said New Jersey’s credit is worth.   
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 So is the Administration, as we sit here today, not certain how 

much of the $9 billion it’s going to ask for in this first round?  I mean, not 

first round; how much of the $9 billion are you going to try and access? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  As I said before, we’re going to 

try and be as judicious as possible in determining what the amount will be.  

But we know what size hole we need to fill, then when we know it’s going to 

be filled with a balance of -- our hope is borrowing, Federal assistance, and 

cuts to spending.  So we’ll work with -- we’ll have a better idea come July 

what our numbers may be looking like.  But again, we know there’s a cost to 

borrowing, and we’re going to be as careful as possible to determine what that 

final amount would be. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  Through the Chair, not to 

belabor the point, but just to try to get a more direct answer.  Not that anyone 

would ever try and be evasive in answering Committee questions; I’m not 

suggesting anyone is.  We seem to be collectively feeling our way through 

this.  

 So if you’re looking to July, and the July 15 deadline, to get a 

sense of what the cash flow is coming in, how many more extensions may be 

requested, at what point does this borrowing application go in?  So when do 

you anticipate making the request to borrow -- the formal request? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Well, I believe the current 

guidance is that we would put in the notice of intent, essentially, that Michael 

I think mentioned earlier in one of his remarks.  We would not be able to do 

that until we knew we had the authority to borrow, which we would receive 

from passage of this legislation.  
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 So that would be the earliest point that we would put a request 

to paper.  But we’ve been informed -- and I know Dini and Michael have been 

in pretty regular contact with the Federal Reserve -- that the number can be 

adjusted through the process in order to help us kind of fine-tune what our 

need is going forward.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  I think that’s very helpful. 

 Chairwoman, I’ll close out on this.  Any other states, at this point 

-- have any other states granted authorization to access the municipal 

program? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Now, I don’t think--  You know,  

we are in this unique situation requiring the legislation in order to be able to 

take advantage of the MLF.  I don’t know to the extent other states have that 

requirement.  I believe -- Michael and Dini, I think Illinois has put in a 

request; have there been other states?  I mean, the MLF -- I don’t know if it’s 

actually--  Today was the day we thought it might be officially rolled out, and 

that states could begin the process.  I don’t know if we’ve received notice 

about whether it has been officially opened yet. 

 Have you guys heard yet? 

 MR. KANEF:  Yes.  So in fact the MLF is officially open and 

accepting applications at this point in time.  There has been no confirmation 

by any specific state that they have applied to the MLF to date. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN BURZICHELLI:  Very good. 

 Treasurer, thank you; and thank you to both Dini and Michael 

for the answers and the information provided. 
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 It’s always good to see all of you; hopefully, next time we’re in 

person.  And if you can bring us better numbers next time that also would be 

greatly appreciated as well.  

 Thank you; thank you, Chairwoman. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  I echo that sentiment, 

Assemblyman. 

 Are there any other second-round questions?  I know that the 

Treasurer needs to go over to the Senate. 

 Any questions, second round? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  Chairwoman? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Yes; Assemblyman 

Wirths, yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:   Just one quick one, Treasurer, and 

I appreciate the time. 

  Just so I’m clear, if the borrowing was successful, are you saying 

that the Governor is going to go back to the original proposed $6 billion, 

increasing since the last Administration?  Is anything -- is it going to be fully 

restored and not look for any additional efficiencies or even something as 

simple as the NJEA plan that has passed the Senate and is waiting to come 

to our house to save money, where both the NJEA and, it seems obviously, 

the Senate supports it.  Are those things coming off the table if this money is 

approved and passes the constitutional muster, or are you saying we’ll go back 

to the full spending plan? 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  No, I never said that; I never 

said that.   
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  No, that’s what I’m asking you; 

excuse me.  I was asking you. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  No, I’ll be more clear. 

 I’ve been saying that we -- this Administration is advising a 

balanced approach, which would include belt-tightening, expenditure cuts. 

The Governor is constantly working with the D.C. delegation for more robust 

and flexible Federal funding, and this bonding request is part of that balanced 

approach. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WIRTHS:  Okay.  I would just like to add that 

the taxpayers -- I know they do need us more than normal, and they’re also 

very, very concerned about keeping their own money and being able to pay 

their bills, as we all know is important to them.  

 So thank you very much, Treasurer, for your time. 

 And Chairwoman, thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you.  

 Just anyone else before we allow the Treasurer to go over to our 

colleagues in the Senate? (no response)  I know that they’re just as eager to 

start as we are. 

 Treasurer, in between the time that you have, the 20 minutes, 

can you make the numbers, as Assemblyman Burzichelli stated, look a little 

better?  We would appreciate that.   

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Okay. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  I don’t hear anybody 

else. 

  Okay; great. 
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 Treasurer, thank you very much.  Thank you to you, your team 

-- Michael, Dini, and everyone who is on here today -- thank you. 

 STATE TREASURER MUOIO:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  I just want to remind 

that we’re going to start the testimony portion, and continue the public 

hearing. 

  Before we do that, I just want to go over a few things.  

 Number one, I want to make sure that everybody understands 

that there is a three-minute time limit; and I think that that was stated when 

everyone had the opportunity to sign up. 

 Number two, I’m going to read off a list of those who have no 

need to testify and are in favor of the Bill. 

 Ernest Lucarini, State Troopers Fraternal Association, in favor, 

no need to testify; Renee Koubiadis, Anti-Poverty Network of New Jersey, in 

favor, no need to testify; Doug O’Malley, Environment New Jersey, in favor, 

no need to testify; Christian Estevez, Latino Action Network; Barry Kushnir,  

Hudson County Central Labor Council; Barry Kushnir, IFPTE Local 194; 

Karen Kominsky, CBL Partners; Daniel Mitzner, Teach Coalition; Peter 

Guzzo, Rutgers Council of AAUP Chapter; Reva Foster, New Jersey Black 

Issues Convention; Jeremy Farrell, LeFrak; Eric Shuffler, American 

Dream/Triple 5; Julie Larrea Borst, Save Our Schools New Jersey Organizing 

Community; Eric Richard, New Jersey AFL-CIO. 

 I do have a question mark under Susan Haspel, President of Boys 

and Girls Clubs of New Jersey. 

 Okay, next we will start the three minutes. 

 We will have Connor Shaw; is Connor Shaw on?  
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J O S E P H   G A U T I E R:  Chairwoman, Connor Shaw is not on. 

 My name is Joseph Gautier; I am the President of Local 755.  I 

am here to testify. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Go ahead. 

 MR. GAUTIER:  Thank you, Chairwoman. 

 Chairwoman Pintor Marin, Vice Chair Burzichelli, and esteemed 

members of the Assembly Budget Committee, my name is Joseph Gautier.  I 

am a proud lifelong resident of New Jersey, and I reside in Bergen County 

where I work in the Department of Health Services as a principal Registered 

Environmental Health Specialist.  

 I am also a River Edge Councilman, and the president of the 

USWU Local 755, representing Bergen County’s white-collar workers.  

 I am here to testify my support for A-4175, New Jersey COVID-

19 Emergency Bond Act. 

 As both a public employee and an elected official, I am very 

aware of both the critical work that our public employees do for this state, as 

well as the unprecedented burden being put on our local communities’ 

budgets. 

  Public employees have stepped up during this crisis, doing 

everything possible to hold our communities together.  The funding that 

comes from the State level down to the counties and municipalities fund 

programs that are essential not only to the individuals who they directly 

serve, but also to society as a whole.  

 Our members work to put an end to opium addiction and 

domestic violence.  They serve seniors, the disabled, children, including 
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disabled children and their families.  It would be a great disservice to abandon 

these people when they need these services the most. 

  In my Local alone, we represent nurses, public health officials, 

social workers, and so many other fine New Jerseyans who are stepping up in 

ways unimaginable to serve New Jersey, and Bergen County in particular. 

  Every day I hear from many of our almost 700 members that 

USWU Local 755 represents.  I hear their fears of catching COVID, but I 

also hear their fears of being laid off.   

 We cannot wait for the Federal government to take action.  That 

is why I’m urging you to pass A-4175 to provide more financial options so no 

public employee will need to be laid off as a result of this current crisis, 

particularly the frontline heroes, in my Local and across the state, whose work 

is literally life-saving.  Not doing so will have a catastrophic effect on the 

residents who depend on these essential services, as well as perpetuate the 

negative economic impact of this pandemic.  

 Thank you for your time. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Perfect; thank you, 

and thank you for participating.  

 MR. GAUTIER: Thank you, Chairwoman.  

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Next we have Dena 

Mottola Jaborska, New Jersey Citizen Action.  

D E N A   M O T T O L A   J A B O R S K A:   I thank you so much.  

Thank you, Chairwoman Pintor Marin, Vice Chair Burzichelli, and the rest 

of the Committee. 
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 I’m from New Jersey Citizen Action, and we speak today in 

strong support of A-4175.  And we urge all the members of the Assembly 

Budget Committee to support this life-saving legislation.  

 We need this Bill, and by voting for it you would be supporting 

working and middle-income families here in New Jersey.  

 The Bill is needed to shore up government services that working 

families and middle-income families really need. It would stem the job losses 

that, again, would hurt hardest the working and middle-class families of New 

Jersey.  It would also help us to be able to expand services and programs for 

these same families, many who are still struggling, whether it’s because they 

were left behind, cannot access unemployment, or did not receive the 

stimulus funding.  It will also help working and middle-income families that 

may not see their job come back, and who may continue to struggle even after 

some of us do go back to work and begin to recover ourselves. 

  The Federal funding that New Jersey got, and that other states 

got, was not enough for New Jersey’s low- and middle-income families.  There  

were gaps in the support that that Federal response money left behind, and 

the State was just too financially strapped to do anything about it -- and that 

was a shame.  We need our State to be able to meet these needs and fill in 

the gaps.  

 And of course, also our small businesses are in the same situation. 

Many are still struggling, and were not helped by the Federal funding. 

  New Jersey’s working families and small businesses simply can’t 

recover without this Bill.  

 I want to, also, quickly say that in order to prepare for the future 

-- which, hopefully, we won’t have to meet another public health crisis, but 
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we likely will, or some other kind of crisis -- the State really should have 

learned its lesson in the way that we experience -- the problems that we 

experience during this pandemic, by adopting State-sustainable revenue 

sources so that we can be better prepared for the next time. 

 I want to quickly go through three things that I think New Jersey 

still needs to do to help small businesses and families to recover from the 

pandemic.  

 The first is that we need a better public health infrastructure here 

in New Jersey.  We need funding from this Bond Act to make sure that we 

can achieve something close to universal testing so that people are not going 

back to work without having been tested and knowing whether they’re 

positive or negative for the virus.  Also to do more for contact tracing, and to 

get an infrastructure in place that we can use to get the vaccine administered 

all around the state when it’s available.  

 We also need a better public health infrastructure to oversee our 

nursing homes.  As we all know, the Department of Health has been 

financially strapped and hasn’t had the resources to oversee this private 

industry that has not done a very good job, as we’re all well aware.  And so 

that is one use of this funding that we think is hugely important. 

 Number two-- 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  I’m sorry, Dena. 

 MS. JABORSKA:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Can you just wrap it 

up?  It’s been three minutes already. 

 MS. JABORSKA:  Yes, yes. 
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 Number two is just to cover everybody with coverage through 

health insurance so that no one is facing living in a pandemic without access 

to the medical profession.  

 And number three is financial assistance for the families that I 

mentioned were left out, or whose job is not going to come back. 

  And then, in closing, we just urge your support of this Bill to 

ensure that the State can help and not hurt working and middle-income 

families with program cuts and job losses.  

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you. 

 MS. JABORSKA:  Thank you so much.  

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you. 

 Theresa Berger, Ocean Health Initiatives. 

T H E R E S A   B E R G E R:  Good morning; or actually good afternoon. 

I don’t even realize the time flew.  

 Thank you so much, Chairwoman Pintor Marin.   

 I wanted to talk a little bit--  Thank you so much for the 

opportunity to speak with you all today.  And I’m a little shaky; I’m sorry, 

I’m a little nervous.  

 My name is Theresa Berger.  I’m President and CEO of Ocean 

Health Initiatives, and I also am Mayor in my town of Howell, New Jersey. 

 OHI is one of 22 Federally Qualified Health Centers which 

compose the New Jersey Primary Care Association.   

 Before pandemic, there were 23 FQHCs; but one has closed its 

doors as an FQHC, and now is just going to remain as a primary care facility, 

and that’s for the Newark community area. 
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 Thank you for sponsoring this Bill, A-4175.  As you know, the 

State has faced many significant declines in revenue in 2020, and then again 

in 2021, due to the pandemic.  And the FQHCs are not an exception.  In 

New Jersey, the FQHCs have 131 satellite sites; we service over 580,000  

patients and we account for over 2.1 million visits annually.  We provide full 

services to our populations, and that’s including comprehensive primary care 

and ambulatory care, ranging from newborns to seniors. 

 We are all open, and we provide services regardless of the ability 

to pay. 

 Ninety-five percent of our patients are considered low income; and 

85 percent are uninsured or underinsured, and they have Medicaid or 

Medicare.   

 During the pandemic, the FQHCs realized over a 40 to 74 

percent reduction in the number of regular daily patient visits during the 

crisis.  This resulted in a significant financial loss.  This loss is in addition to 

the tens of thousands of dollars that these health centers have expended with 

all of our protective equipment and all the things that we need to do to now 

become COVID-ready. 

 The State will realize significant declines in revenue from gross 

income tax, corporate tax, and sales tax.  And in addition, many of the 

revenues that have helped to flatten the curve have also caused many issues 

for us.  

 So this Bill does protect the essential workers and the frontline 

workers, which we have.  And so we are so pleased to say that we join you 

and we approve this Bill, A-4175. 

 And thank you so much for allowing me to speak. 
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 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you very 

much, Mayor. 

 Wayne Blanchard, State Troopers Fraternal Association. (no 

response) 

 Okay, we’ll move on; we’ll come back to Wayne. 

 Francine Pfeffer, NJEA. 

F R A N C I N E   L.   P F E F F E R:  Hi, good afternoon.  

 Thank you, Chairwoman, Vice Chair, and members of the 

Committee.  

 NJEA supports A-4175.  We have raised concerns -- especially in 

Assemblyman Burzichelli’s Committee -- about school districts being made 

whole if municipalities do not pay the district its full levy share.  And we 

understand the pandemic has caused great damage to the State’s economy, 

and we support this Bill as a way of making sure that everything can continue 

to work. 

  While borrowing is not anyone’s first choice, we know there will 

be really significant additional costs to schools if they reopen in the fall, or if 

they reopen at any point during the pandemic -- which we do hope happens.  

 We have community colleges that are questioning their ability to 

keep their doors open in the fall.  So ensuring that the State has the funds to 

make aid payments to schools to pay for the additional money needed to 

reopen during the pandemic, to give operating aid to community colleges -- 

making sure we have the funds for that is essential. 

  At the same time, Assemblyman Wirths mentioned our Chapter 

78 Relief Bill that passed in the Senate, which would provide healthcare 
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savings to school districts, taxpayers, and public education employees.  So we 

do hope that will move as well, as a way of helping the State meet its needs. 

 Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you very 

much.  

 Next, Sheila Reynertson, New Jersey Police Perspective. 

S H E I L A   R E Y N E R T S O N:  Good afternoon, Chairwoman Pintor 

Marin and Committee members.  

 Thank you for this opportunity to speak with you today. 

 New Jersey Policy Perspective is in support of this legislation, 

and urges Assembly members to move it forward. 

  A vital lesson from the Great Recession is that an over-reliance 

on cutting services and laying off workers in the face of falling revenue led to 

a prolonged and painful recovery.  Facing another massive economic fallout, 

New Jersey cannot afford to make the same mistakes again.  We know now 

that those deep cuts to public services worsened the economic fall, further 

fueled deep inequalities for millions of New Jerseyans, and ultimately slowed 

the State’s recovery.  

 These cuts have also hampered the State’s response to the 

current health and economic crisis, as the departments on the forefront of 

the COVID response have significantly fewer staff and resources than prior 

to the Great Recession.  And so to advance an equitable recovery, the State 

must make bold choices so that no community is left behind, especially black 

New Jerseyans and other people of color who have been historically excluded 

from opportunity and economic security. 
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  Without a full range of intentional policy changes at the State 

level, this pandemic will drastically exacerbate the economic and health 

inequalities that COVID-19 has put on full display.  And those most at risk 

of another recession have not fully recovered from the last one; yet they 

continue to show up for work to do essential jobs during the global pandemic, 

putting their own families’ health at risk. 

 So in this context, NJPP supports the proposed legislation to 

allow borrowing through the Federal Reserve. 

  We understand the State’s history of borrowing is a checkered 

one.  All of us taxpayers are making debt payments now on the sins of 

irresponsible budget practices of the past.  And it seems counterintuitive to 

consider putting a similar burden on future taxpayers, but it’s because of 

those choices made by past lawmakers that New Jersey is now in a severely 

compromised position to handle both a ferocious virus and a wholesale 

economic shutdown. 

  And a decade of budget gimmicks and raids that intentionally 

emptied rainy day funds, and massive tax breaks for corporations and wealthy 

families, cannot be fixed quickly.  Progress was beginning to take root when 

the pandemic knocked the state back on its heels. 

 The critics will say we can’t borrow our way out of this economic 

calamity, just as they have said we can’t tax our way out of our oversized 

obligations.  And they claim the State should just take it on the chin by 

slashing the State budget until New Jersey businesses have reopened and 

revenues have stabilized.  But we’ve seen this wishful thinking before, and we 

know it did more harm than good.  
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 Austerity is not an abstract accounting solution; it is an 

abdication of responsibility toward New Jersey families, small businesses, and 

communities most at risk of missing a paycheck, going to bed hungry, not 

making rent, dropping out of school, or shutting down a Main Street store. 

To meet the challenges of the next two years, New Jersey needs to rise to the 

occasion and start with taking full advantage of all available tools, including 

short-term bonding. 

  And finally, it would be wise for the State to pursue a plan 

completely (indiscernible) payments within a shorter period of time.  Thirty-

five years is not ideal; 5 to 10 years would be even better.  This prudent goal 

can be met by implementing tax raises that target the wealthy and large 

corporations. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you, Ms. 

Reynertson; thank you. 

 Next, we have a David Rousseau from AICUNJ. 

R.   D A V I D   R O U S S E A U:  Good morning, Committee members. 

  I’ve submitted written testimony on behalf of Independent 

Colleges. 

 And the two main points there are that -- recognizing that the 

borrowing is needed as part of an overall solution to help protect student aid 

as we move forward, and also to help both independent and public colleges 

with the added costs that will come in the fall for testing that will need to be 

out there.  And the State has made it clear already that the State will not 

provide that testing.  

 So that closes my remarks. Like I said, you have written 

testimony on behalf of ICUNJ. 
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 I also wanted to provide a few remarks to you, based on my prior 

experience. 

  When I left in January of 2010, as the State Treasurer, I would 

have never thought that some group of legislators and the State Treasurer 

would be dealing with an issue like this so quickly.  I would have thought it 

would have been a generation again before we had to deal with this.   

 Just some words of observation to you and the Administration is 

that borrowing, yes, needs to be part of the solution, as well as the increased 

Federal funds, as well as cuts that have been made, as well as potential tax 

increases.  But we also need to remember that both borrowing and Federal 

funds are both short-term solutions.  And my advice to you, as a Legislature, 

would be to work with the Administration to ensure that there is a glide path 

over the next two years or so, so that we don’t just push off the cliff.  If, all 

of a sudden, two years from now we don’t have the Federal money and we 

don’t have the borrowing anymore, we’re going to have the same cliff; and all 

these groups are going to be back here again saying, “We need other options 

to protect us against cuts down the road.” 

  So you should ensure that there is some way to use this money, 

over a period of time, to get to a glide path of where economic recovery has 

begun.  Because there’s no amount of economic recovery that will be out there 

to make up these one-shot revenues that will be there.  But they still need to 

be part of the solution.  This can’t be done all on the backs of cuts that will 

have a devastating impact on the economy.  

 I would have you look at some things that are out there. Things 

that have been looked at over the last 20 years and then pushed aside should 

be re-looked at.  I know there’s been an idea floated out there about doing a 
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better job of allocating our employees to Federal funds in order to maximize 

the amount of money we get for their health benefits and also their pensions. 

I would also urge you to look at -- New Jersey should be getting a windfall of 

tax revenue right now from people who used to work in New York who are 

now spending all of their time in New Jersey.  We have to make sure -- 

whatever we have to do legislatively, or negotiations with New York, is to 

make sure those people who were splitting 50 percent of their time in New  

York and 50 percent in New Jersey, which meant we were only getting 50 

percent of their income tax revenue--  Well, for the last 11 weeks, they’ve 

been, 100 percent of their time, in New Jersey.  We need to make sure that 

we maximize -- that we get the revenue from the sources we already have out 

there. 

  So that would just be my--  A glide path; making sure that we 

don’t just push this problem off to two or three years from now; maximizing 

our revenues that we are currently due, either from the Federal government 

or taxpayers; maximizing the use of the Federal funds.  And yes, there will 

have to be cuts, but we have to make sure that those cuts don’t do more harm 

than they do good overall. 

  And thank you very much. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you; thank 

you very much. 

 Wayne Blanchard, State Troopers Fraternal Association. 

W A Y N E   B L A N C H A R D:  Good afternoon, Assemblywoman. 

 Thank you, and good afternoon to the members of the 

Committee. 
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 I’ll be brief, because I submitted written testimony.  And if 

anybody didn’t receive it, just contact me offline and I’ll get it to the 

respective members.  

 I just want to underscore the importance of -- when you look at 

law enforcement over the last 20 years, we had 9/11 and now this 

unprecedented COVID pandemic.  Our missions are constantly changing and 

forcing us to -- we’re increasing expenditures for our respective agencies.  So 

I think the importance of us supporting this Bill is there, coupled with the 

fact, we can’t forget our everyday obligations.  So within the State Police and 

law enforcement agencies in general, we need to continue to recruit qualified 

people to enter into the ranks of law enforcement.  Within the State Police 

we generally have large classes that go in, which means large groups are 

retiring at a certain point.  So we have a tremendous burden of attrition at 

certain points during the calendar year.  So we need to continue having 

funding available for future State Police classes.  

 The final point is, we also are committed to several infrastructure 

and capital projects that we were working with the Governor’s Office on, and 

the Superintendent’s Office.  So without getting into detail on them, I ask 

the members to keep in mind the importance of public safety, and those 

projects that we’ve been discussing for the next fiscal year.  And if there are 

questions on that, I can certainly answer them offline to the respective 

members.  

 Thank you, Madam Chair and members of the Committee.  And 

we strongly support A-4175. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you very 

much, Wayne; thank you. 
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 Next, we have Mr. Steinhardt. 

D O U G L A S   J.   S T E I N H A R D T,   Esq.:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Go ahead. 

 MR. STEINHARDT:  Good morning, members of the Assembly, 

Madam Chairwoman. 

 Thank you for the opportunity to speak today.  

 My name is Doug Steinhardt; I’m Chairman of the New Jersey 

Republican State Committee.  I’m also a lifelong New Jersey resident.  

 So thank you for the opportunity to join you today.  

 I’m here today because the COVID lockdown and the time it 

afforded me with my family reminded me, more than ever, that family is 

worth fighting for. 

 As we’ve had to adapt from physical face time to FaceTime the 

app, I realized I don’t want to be one of those parents or grandparents who 

has to visit his children or grandchildren on Skype or Zoom because my 

family can’t afford to buy a house here, find a job here, or start a life here. 

Excess spending and Governor Murphy’s multi-billion-dollar borrowing 

scheme -- that you contemplate today -- combine to make that more likely, 

and New Jersey less affordable. 

  No budget that doesn’t cut taxes, reduce spending, revamp 

COAH, rewrite the school funding formula, improve education, embrace  

seniors, and include meaningful pension reforms will ever make New Jersey 

affordable again or restore New Jerseyans’ faith in their Governor or 

government. 

 The Governor’s proposed borrowing scheme continues a pattern 

fashioned during this crisis of government overreach and blatant disregard for 
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New Jersey Supreme Court precedent, and our State and Federal 

Constitutions.  I would encourage this body not to be complicit in the 

Governor’s lawlessness; in fact, reject it.  Don’t just be led, be leaders 

yourselves.  Don’t tell us you’re listening; show us.  Don’t confirm what many 

of us already suspect.   

 And as a result of this coronavirus, we’re no longer a government 

of three branches, but merely a government of one.  

 There are reasonable alternatives that put New Jersey on a better 

path.  Tax cuts put more money in people’s pockets; tax increases take it. 

Borrowing schemes buy the appearance of stability; but they make us less 

stable.  Use this opportunity to improve our worst-in-the-nation tax climate 

by implementing tax-cutting policies that embrace small business and put 

New Jerseyans back to work.  

 I think the hardest part of leadership isn’t having the courage to 

do what’s right; it’s resisting the temptation to do what’s easy.  Thinking that 

we can borrow and tax our way out of a recession sounds easy; but in reality, 

it isn’t. 

  I’d ask this Committee not to fall back into the same bad habits 

that brought us here.  Reject the Governor’s scheme; don’t own it yourselves.  

We can avoid our otherwise inevitable economic collapse by adopting fiscally 

responsible policies that help New Jerseyans get back on their feet without 

burying them deeper in debt. 

  Chairwoman, thank you; members of the Committee, thank you 

for your time today.  And I wish you all stay safe and good health.  

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you. 

 Christopher from NJBIA; Christopher Emigholz. 
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C H R I S T O P H E R   E M I G H O L Z:  Thank you, Chairman.  

 Good afternoon. Chairwoman Pintor Marin; good afternoon, 

Vice Chair Burzichelli and members of this Committee. 

  On behalf of the thousands of businesses that are members of 

BIA and the one million people they employ throughout our state, we wanted 

to share our perspective on borrowing in this Bill.  

 There are times where borrowing is appropriate.  Borrowing to 

spread the impact of something over many years, such as paving new roads, 

building a new bridge, a once-in-a-lifetime pandemic -- hopefully, once-in-a-

lifetime -- may be appropriate to borrow something.  Borrowing is appropriate 

for cash flow management.  It’s appropriate to smooth out cash that comes 

in throughout the year, not necessarily in the same consistent manner 

throughout the year.  Borrowing may be appropriate to avoid painful actions 

that might be necessary outside of borrowing, such as a tax increase, such as 

spending cuts that might hurt the economy. 

 But there’s also a lot of concern to borrowing.  Borrowing must 

be done right, borrowing must not be excessive.  And I think the first concern 

is, is this premature -- what we have in front of us?  I think the cash-flow 

borrowing, the using the Municipal Liquidity Facility is certainly appropriate. 

But is this borrowing premature when we don’t know what the level of 

Federal assistance is coming in, and we hope it might be great enough to avoid 

the need for borrowing.  We don’t know what the July 15 CBT and income 

tax revenues are going to be, and maybe they are better than we are hoping 

and maybe this might lessen the need for borrowing. 

  And I understand that these numbers in this Bill in front of you 

is an authorization, not necessarily an exact amount.  But I hope that exact 
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amount of borrowing is limited as much as possible, so the authorization may 

not be as high as it’s currently being contemplated in this Bill.  

 We also worry about borrowing before we’ve done all that’s 

necessary to help our -- putting our taxpayers first.  We need to put spending 

cuts and structural reforms first, pension and health reforms, the salaries of 

our public workers.  If everyone around the state is sacrificing, there’s no 

reason why that sacrifice shouldn’t be shared in the public sector.  And 

structural reforms should be part of the considerations we have before we go 

to borrowing.  

 We also want to make sure that the length of the borrowing, 35 

years -- is that appropriate for balancing a budget?  Is the amount 

contemplated appropriate?  Is this Bill in front of us today appropriate in 

terms of making sure the payments are consistent?  We wouldn’t want to see 

anything--  Past borrowing attempts -- we’ve seen balloon payments at the 

back end to avoid the pain today.  That’s not appropriate for the fiscal 

stability of the State, and we hope that could be avoided.  

 We also know that there is some legal questions here.  And 

certainly, BIA is not going to weigh in on if this is legal or not.  But knowing 

that they’re out there, is it appropriate to have a back-up plan?  Because the 

worst-case scenario could be if this is struck down when the State’s depending 

upon it, and then we might have to resort to worse scenarios. 

 The last thing I wanted to put out there is that, when you’re in 

a hole, do we want to be digging deeper?  And to some extent, the very 

businesses that create tax revenues for the State that have created the hole-- 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  I’m sorry, Chris.  Can 

you just wrap it up? 
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 MR. EMIGHOLZ:  Thank you; I’m doing that.  Sorry, 

Chairwoman. 

 The very businesses that create tax revenues are the ones that 

have been shuttered for the past few months.  And if we push our State to 

have a safe and CDC-appropriate reopening, but having a plan with metrics 

and guidance, will help us get out of the revenue hole that we’re in, because 

those revenues come from the businesses that, right now, can’t operate the 

way they want. 

 So thank you, Chairwoman; thank you, Committee.  We look 

forward to working with you through this crisis.  

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you. 

 Matthew Hersh, Housing and Community Development. 

M A T T H E W   H E R S H:  Thank you, Chairwoman Pintor Marin, and 

Vice Chairman Burzichelli; and members of the Committee. 

 We really appreciate the time today. 

 I’m going to hit “start” on my timer so I don’t go over. 

 The Housing and Community Development Network of New 

Jersey is the statewide association of more than 250 community development 

corporations, individuals, and other organizations that support the creation 

of affordable homes, economic opportunities, and strong communities.   

 We appreciate the opportunity to testify today in support of this 

important legislation, and we hope it passes.  

 My testimony is actually interesting, because it’s going to 

contrast a little bit with previous testimony.  We think that this Bill will 

ultimately provide a solid foundation -- an economic foundation for the State, 

and ideally make it more affordable.  
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 This pandemic has shown us that issues of public health and 

housing are deeply interconnected.  No one can stay home to protect their 

own health and the health of others if they do not have a safe, affordable 

place to live.  And now, more than ever, we need to create a solid foundation 

for New Jersey renters and homeowners to make sure that they can keep a 

roof over their heads and stay safe throughout this health crisis.  

 We started by keeping families in their homes; Governor 

Murphy assured that through Executive Order 106.  And under this Bill, A-

4175, it addresses that Executive Order when it states that “no lessee, tenant, 

homeowner, or any other person shall be removed from a residential property 

by foreclosure or eviction...while Executive Order No. 106 is in effect.” 

 This is a critical starting point because, before the pandemic, 

New Jersey was already one of the most expensive places to rent an 

apartment.  Here, a family needs an annual household income of $60,000 to 

afford a two-bedroom market-rate rental.  Now our unemployment rate has 

surged to 15 percent, up from record lows just a month before.  And we’re 

grateful that -- we know that your legislative staffs have spent an enormous 

amount of time helping residents and constituents navigate the 

unemployment benefit system, because so many New Jerseyans are one 

month away from economic catastrophe. 

 Thousands of New Jerseyans were close to a housing crisis before 

the coronavirus.  So if New Jersey is going to forestall a greater crisis and keep 

people in their homes during and after the pandemic, then the State’s fiscal 

house must have the proper tools to provide critical social services for New 

Jerseyans impacted by coronavirus, such as housing counseling and the right 

to counsel for residents who need assistance.  This is why it’s so important 
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that you’ve restored programs like the Affordable Housing Trust Fund and 

increased the cap on the Neighborhood Revitalization Tax Credit.  These 

service bedrocks (indiscernible) crisis, because they ensure that families can 

afford to live here and send their children to school here.  And during this 

pandemic -- and whatever the future brings -- these investments provide a 

strong foundation for communities by keeping residents safe and in their 

home.  They also mitigate the economic and social strain that results from 

housing instability.  

 But for all this work, we need our government to operate fully 

and efficiently.  And at a time when New Jersey and its municipalities have 

to rethink estimated revenues and appropriations, and when local 

governments are going to be hard-pressed to operate at existing levels, let 

alone provide additional services, the Network believes that this emergency 

Bond Act is critical to keeping our state and its residents above water.  

 Thank you so much. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you. 

 Can I please have Luis De La Hoz, Statewide Hispanic Chamber 

of Commerce? (no response) 

 Okay, we’ll come back. 

 Patricia Campos from LUPE. 

P A T R I C I A   C A M P O S - M E D I N A:  Yes, I’m here; thank you, 

thank you very much, Chairwoman Pinto Marin, for the opportunity to 

speak.  

 My name is Patricia Campos-Medina; I’m the President of 

Latinas United for Political Empowerment, a statewide group advocating for 
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the economic and social well-being of Latina women in our families in New 

Jersey.  

 I am here to express our organization’s support for A-4175, 

which would allow the State of New Jersey to balance the budget mandate; 

and, at the same time, meet COVID-19 pandemic-related expenditures. 

  The COVID-19 crisis in New Jersey, and across the United 

States, has revealed the deep inequalities in our society created by more than 

40 years of economic policies that prioritize tax breaks to billionaires and 

corporations, and forced governments to live within austerity budgets that 

reduce savings and reserves across all programs and government agencies. 

Those policies reduced revenue and left New Jersey with limited resources to 

meet the needs of all working families impacted today by COVID-19. 

 While all communities across New Jersey have been negatively 

impacted, one way or another, by this crisis, data released in the last two 

months reveal that communities of color are the ones bearing the brunt of 

the pandemic, both in terms of who is working as a frontline worker, who is 

getting sick, and whose jobs are being eliminated or closed down.  Many 

members of our community cannot afford to work from home.  They are out 

there trying to figure out how to make a living, and getting ill. 

  According to New Jersey EDA’s own data, 44 percent of 

Hispanics and 34 percent of African Americans were working in jobs 

vulnerable or impacted by this pandemic.  This racial disparity mirrors the 

same data that we already knew:  Blacks and Latinos were living in economic 

precarity, and this crisis will drive them further into poverty. 

  Data from the New Jersey Policy Perspective revealed that 60 

percent  of New Jersey’s Hispanic don’t have enough savings to withstand a 
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health emergency.  Now those same families are unemployed, they are sick 

or taking care of their elder parents who are ill, or taking care of children who 

are out of school.  Without adequate assistance from the government, more 

Latino families in New Jersey will fall into economic despair and be farther 

driven into poverty. 

 Let’s remember that 20 percent of the New Jersey population is 

Latino, and our economic prosperity is essential to the prosperity for 

everyone in New Jersey. 

 Let’s also remember that New Jersey is the third largest receiver 

of immigrants in the United States, in that almost 400,000 undocumented 

immigrants live, work, go to school, and pay taxes in New Jersey.  They are 

frontline workers in critical structure supply chain jobs, in warehouses, in 

logistics, in our farms, in our restaurants, in our healthcare industries, and in 

our restaurants and farms.  They pay taxes through ID numbers, and yet were 

left out of any Federal relief and programs. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Patricia, if you could 

just wrap up. 

 MS. CAMPOS-MEDINA:  New Jersey families, Latino    

families--   

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Patricia, if you could 

just wrap up. 

 MS. CAMPOS-MEDINA:  Yes, yes; thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  You’re welcome. 

 MS. CAMPOS-MEDINA:  New Jersey families, Latino families 

need these programs, they need support, and they need the New Jersey 

Legislature to step up and help fund some of these essential services.  And it 
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is because of that reason that we, LUPE, support A-4175, and we urge 

everyone in the Assembly to support it.  

 Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you very 

much; thank you. 

 Amir Khan. 

P A S T O R   A M I R   K H A N:  Yes, good afternoon.  

 This is Pastor Amir Khan, New Beginnings Camden, New Jersey; 

and also the Concerned Black Clergy. 

  We wanted to give our undying support, our strong support in 

reference to the proposed Bond Act.  Obviously, after hearing the great going 

back and forth earlier today, $7 billion is absolutely needed by October 1. 

 You know, New Jersey, I personally feel, set a great example, a 

great standard for the rest of the country with how we handle things here in 

New Jersey.  And you know what?  Now we’re paying for it; there are a lot of 

expenses that have to be taken care of.  And this Bill is going to go to help 

offset this, and keep us back on the right track.  

 I just want to make sure we understand we cannot afford to lose 

out on primary foundational, fundamental services.  These cuts, that would 

be obvious, would be to the bone.  We need this tool to borrow; we have to 

be able to borrow funding.  We can’t shut down local, we can’t shut down 

State.  Massive cuts in schooling and pension; massive cuts in local -- there’s 

no choice.  What that will do will be devastating.  

 You know, we have to remember the other peripheral costs that 

will arise when we cut these certain services.  When we cut social services, 

we’re going to increase prison.  Because when we cut things like dealing with 
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the addicted, it’s going to increase the health care, you know?  I can imagine 

-- we personally -- one of our ministries is to the formerly incarcerated, to 

those who are addicted, those who are homeless.  We have a big 38-foot 

motorhome; we took out the beds in the back, and we have three showers 

and a washer/dryer.  We go around serving hundreds and hundreds in the 

Camden area every single week.  But to see those services cut, and other 

services like it, we can’t even imagine--  Every week, getting many, many off 

the streets and into detox and into residential programs, all these services -- 

they cannot be cut; we can’t afford to cut out on State and local. 

 And I’ll close by saying this.  You know, I’m 63 years old, New 

Jersey all my life, have three beautiful children, six beautiful grandchildren.  

And there have been multiple times in my life that we were debt-free as a 

family; and it felt absolutely great to be debt-free or have our finances under 

control.  But when catastrophe hit our family numerous times, we had to go 

in debt.  We knew we had to come up with a plan to get out of it, but it was 

an absolute necessity to do that.   

 I’m telling you, we understand COVID-19 -- coronavirus has 

been a catastrophe.  And the same way I got ourselves out of debt, going 

through those cycles, New Jersey will do the same thing. 

  And I encourage you, again, strongly, strongly -- we strongly 

support this proposed Bond Act. 

 Thank you very much, Madam Chair and members of the 

Committee.  

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you, Pastor 

Khan. 

 Pastor Raul Ruiz. 
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R E V E R E N D   R A U L   R U I Z:  Yes; thank you for the opportunity 

to speak.  

 Again, my name is Reverend Raul Ruiz.  I have been the Pastor 

of the Spanish American Baptist Church in Union City for the past 33 years. 

We operate the daycare, serve the community; and I am present here today 

in my capacity as the President of the New Jersey Coalition of Latino Pastors 

and Ministers. 

 As the gospel of Matthew commands us to remember those in 

need in our society, for me the poor are the face of Christ.  As any Pastor 

knows, the impact of an economic downturn or healthcare crisis hits the poor 

the hardest.  I am concerned as to how this pandemic economic downturn 

and State financial situation will impact the poor, the marginalized, the single 

Latino mother, the addicted son in need of treatment, the child struggling in 

pre-K school, the Latino child returning from school, and generally most 

Latino families. 

 The State must grapple with challenges, including the necessity 

for $9 billion for educational funding, COVID health care, New Jersey Family 

Medicaid for Needy Families, re-entry, and New Jersey Transit repairs -- to 

name just a few demands which impact the day-to-day lives of New Jersey 

families, including Latino families.  

 The banks are necessary to ensure that these worthy and 

important causes will be funded. 

 Given the challenges of the budget, together with the 

unanticipated expenses due to COVID-19, the bonds are the mechanism to 

ensure that worthy programs continue to protect, serve, and support the poor 

and marginalized in our Latino communities.  A member of our church -- of 
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our Coalition, at one of the churches in Elizabeth -- the name is Cristo Te 

Llama -- houses men who have been released from prison with no adequate 

housing.  These are the needs that must be addressed.   

 The reason we support these bonds is to ensure that needed 

programs are sustained to serve those in the most need.  These programs must  

continue into the future.  That’s why we are grateful for the mayors we work 

with -- mayors like Mayor Bollwage in Elizabeth, Mayor Baraka in Newark, 

Mayor Sayegh in Paterson, and my own Mayor Stack in Union City -- for 

helping to assist tenants and the homeless.  It has particularly difficult for 

those being released from prison or jail with no identification, no benefits, 

and no Medicaid.  For the immigrant community, legal and healthcare 

services are even more difficult to come by.  And for our Latino and African 

American youth, they need access to health care, a physician, a drug 

treatment program, and employment services. 

 These are the re-entry services which are essential to stop the 

violence and chaos in the lives of many of our youth. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you, Reverend 

Ruiz.  If you could just close up. 

 REVEREND RUIZ:  Sure. 

 As a Pastor and as a Christian, I ask you, of course, please do not 

abandon the poorest.  The Latino community is the fastest-growing 

community segment of the population in New Jersey.  And I ask you to 

remember the broken, the addicted, the imprisoned; and to remember the 

commandment that whatever you did for the least of these, you did for me. 

 So thank you very much for your consideration. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you. 
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 Henry Gajda, New Jersey League of Conservation Voters. 

H E N R Y   G A J D A:  Hi, everyone. 

 Henry Gajda, Policy Director, with the New Jersey League of 

Conservation Voters.  

 Thank you, Chairwoman Pintor Marin and the Committee, for 

the opportunity to speak today. 

  The New Jersey League of Conservation Voters strongly 

supports A-4175, the New Jersey COVID-19 Emergency Bond Act.  

 We thank the Legislature, Governor Murphy, and the 

Administration for their work to manage an unprecedented crisis, and 

providing a science-based, rational approach to addressing it and informing 

the public. 

  As we know, and as we are here today discussing, COVID-19 

has sent major disruptions through the very fabric of our great state. 

  COVID threatens our ability to continue to build a better and 

more prosperous future for all New Jerseyans, especially those who have been 

left behind and are most vulnerable in our community.  We have a long road 

to recovery; a road that intersects with the continued burdens posed by 

COVID, increasing risks of climate change, deteriorating infrastructure, and 

pre-existing financial obligations. 

 But this road also has opportunity.  It’s accompanied by the 

opportunities of our burgeoning clean energy economy and the good local 

jobs that come with it -- jobs that can’t be exported.  It provides an 

opportunity to make the direct investments our communities and 

infrastructures need, like upgraded water infrastructures that protect our 

clean drinking water; and also helps get people back to work.  
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 It allows us to re-envision how we want to rebuild a state that is 

stronger, fairer, and more equitable, and meets the climate infrastructure and 

social challenges of both today and tomorrow. 

 But more importantly, our road to recovery is one that begins 

with voting “yes” on A-4175, to provide the platform for a strong recovery 

and promise to continue the State’s essential services so that no New Jerseyan 

gets left behind.  

 Thank you for your time. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN PINTOR MARIN:  Thank you very 

much. 

  Sarah Lilja, Lutherans Engaging in Advocacy Ministry. (no 

response) 

 I didn’t see her on. 

 Luis De La Hoz. (no response) 

 I know that I saw him on earlier as well, but I don’t see him on 

right now. 

 Okay; those were the only two left, so this concludes our portion 

of public comment. 

 We now close public comment, and we will move on to the bills.  

 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 

 

 




























































